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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION
AND APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN TS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

The following statement, which should be read injaoction with independent auditors’ responsilati
stated in the independent auditors’ report setasufpages 2-3, is made with a view to distinguishing
the respective responsibilities of management ddet of the independent auditors in relation to the
consolidated financial statements of Joint Stockm@any Kazkommertsbank and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”).

Management is responsible for the preparation efctnsolidated financial statements that presery fa
the financial position of the Group as at 31 Decen#)07 and the results of its operations, cashsfland
changes in equity for the year then ended, in aeare with International Financial Reporting Stadda
(“IFRS").

In preparing the consolidated financial statementmagement is responsible for:

. Selecting suitable accounting principles and apgiyhem consistently;
. Making judgements and estimates that are reasoaabl@rudent;
. Stating whether IFRS have been followed; and

. Preparing the consolidated financial statement& @oing concern basis, unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Group will continue in busirfesshe foreseeable future.

Management is also responsible for:

. Designing, implementing and maintaining an effeztwid sound system of internal controls,
throughout the Group;

. Maintaining proper accounting records that discl@gth reasonable accuracy at any time, the fir@nci
position of the Group, and which enable them taisnshat the consolidated financial statements of
the Group comply with IFRS;

. Maintaining statutory accounting records in compdia with legislation and accounting standards of
the Republic of Kazakhstan;

e Taking such steps as are reasonably availablesto th safeguard the assets of the Group; and
. Detecting and preventing fraud and other irregtiési

The consolidated financial statements for the yated 31 December 2007 were authorised for issue on
28 February 2008 (25 March 2008 for the effectsthed restatement discussed in note 40) by the
Management Board of JSC Kazkommertsbank.

My

Shoinbekova G.K.
Chief Accountant

28 February 2008 (25 March 2008 for the
effects of the restatement discussed in note 40)

Almaty Almaty
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Shareholders of JSC Kazkommertsbank:
Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated diahistatements of JSC Kazkommertsbank and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the aitated balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, the
consolidated income statement, statement of chaimgequity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accountgligies and other explanatory notes.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated fiancial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation aid gresentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International FirsnReporting Standards. This responsibility inckide
designing, implementing and maintaining internaitoal relevant to the preparation and fair preg@nmeof
consolidated financial statements that are frem froaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud oorer
selecting and applying appropriate accounting pdic and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hf#sancial statements based on our audit. We atedu
our audit in accordance with International Stanslam Auditing. Those standards require that we dpnvjth
ethical requirements and plan and perform the atmlitobtain reasonable assurance whether the
consolidated financial statements are free fromenetmisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidiaevidence about the amounts and disclosurésein
consolidated financial statements. The procedwkested depend on the auditor’s judgment, includireg
assessment of the risks of material misstatemetiteotonsolidated financial statements, whethertdue
fraud or error. In making those risk assessmehts,atuditor considers internal control relevanthe t
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of tlomsolidated financial statements in order to desigdit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumssarted not for the purpose of expressing an opioiothe
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Andit also includes evaluating the appropriaterass
accounting policies used and the reasonableneascolinting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the considid financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamesdfficient and appropriate to provide a basrsour
audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagoresent fairly, in all material respects, theaficial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2007, &nithiancial performance and its cash flows forybar
then ended in accordance with International FireriReporting Standards.

As discussed in note 40 the accompanying finastééments have been restated.
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Deloitte, LLP

State license on auditing of the Republic of

Kazakhstan Number 0000015, type MFU-2, given by Nurlan Bekenov
the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazaldrst General Director
dated September 13, 2006 Deloitte, LLP

28 February 2008 (25 March 2008 as to the effelctiseorestatement discussed in note 40)



JOINT STOCK COMPANY KAZKOMMERTSBANK

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Notes

Interest income 4,34
Interest expense 4,34

NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON INTEREST BEARING ASSETS

Provisions for impairment losses on interest begaissets 5
NET INTEREST INCOME

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at ¥aiue though profit

or loss 6
Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange and preciousisieperations 7
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net realized gain on investments available-for-sale
Dividends received
Other income 9

o

NET NON-INTEREST INCOME
OPERATING INCOME
OPERATING EXPENSES 10, 34

PROFIT BEFORE OTHER OPERATING PROVISIONS AND
RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES

Provision for impairment losses on other transastio 5
Provision for guarantees and other off-balancetstm#ingencies 5
Share of results of associates 20, 34

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income tax expense 11
NET PROFIT

Attributable to:

Ordinary shareholders of the parent
Preference shareholders of the parent
Minority interest

EARNINGS PER SHAR
Basic and diluted (KZT) 12

Almaty

My

Shoinbekova G.K.
Chief Accountant

28 February 2008
Almaty

The notes on pages 9-80 form an integral part cietltensolidated financial statements.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
316,458 147,250
(169,528) (83,115)
146,930 64,135
(69,956) (32,887)
76,974 31,248
21,627 4,744
(18,605) 5,204
23,558 17,537
(2,713) (1,672)
41 29
145 83
6,919 3,042
30,972 28,967
107,946 60,215
(31,200) (19,053)
76,746 41,162
(1,238) (383)
(3,186) (1,548)
1,333 1,130
73,655 40,361
(15,904) (12,600)
57,751 27,761
46,468 20,626
9,495 5,359
1,788 1,776
80.85 48.08



JOINT STOCK COMPANY KAZKOMMERTSBANK

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

Notes 31 December 31 December

2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
ASSETS:
Cash and balances with national (central) banks 13 168,148 209,005
Precious metals 14 - 807
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 15 188,776 322,618
Loans and advances to banks 16 212,823 197,191
Loans to customers 17, 34 2,366,335 1,678,840
Investments available-for-sale 18 3,036 2,628
Investments held to maturity 19 375 357
Investments in associates 20, 34 3,222 1,755
Goodwill 21 2,405 2,405
Property, equipment and intangible assets 22 34,259 15,681
Other assets 23 17,853 10,569
TOTAL ASSETS 2,997,232 2,441,856
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Loans and advances from banks 25 723,431 884,301
Customer accounts 26, 34 895,083 687,806
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss 24 7,730 3,554
Debt securities issued 27 739,688 424,162
Other borrowed funds 28 148,934 68,814
Provisions 5 10,638 6,758
Deferred income tax liabilities 11 30,496 16,850
Dividends payable 2 1
Other liabilities 29 13,845 8,587
2,569,847 2,100,833
Subordinated debt 30 108,166 78,922
Total liabilities 2,678,013 2,179,755
EQUITY:
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent:
Share capital 6,998 6,995
Share premium reserve 152,855 152,534
Property and equipment revaluation reserve 6,020 4362
Reserves 140,794 84,864
Total equity attributable to equity holders of thergnt 306,667 246,829
Minority interest 12,552 15,272
Total equity 319,219 262,101
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,997,232 2,441,856

On bgha Board of the Bank: /w’f]
Zhu Shoinbekova G.K.
Chai Chief Accountant
28 Februdtg 28 February 2008
Almary Almaty

The notes on pages 9-80 form an integral part agfetltensolidated financial statements.



JOINT STOCK COMPANY KAZKOMMERTSBANK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Share  Treasury Share Invest- Cumu-  Property Retained Total Minority Total
capital shares  premium ments lative  and equip- earnings  equity interest equity
reserve available- translation ment attri-
for-sale  reservé revaluation butable
fair value reserve to equity
reserve/(de holders of
ficit) * the parent
(KzT (KZT (KZT (KZT (KzT (KZT (KzT (KzT (KZT (KzT
million) million) million) million) million) million) million) million) million) million)

31 December 2005 5,000 (4) 15,902 1 3 1,520 58,873 81,295 6,976 88,271
Unrealized gain on revaluation of

available-for-sale investments - - - 68 - - - 68 - 68
Revaluation of property and

equipment - - - - - 1,355 - 1,355 - 1,355
Deferred income tax recognized on

revaluation of property and

equipment - - - - - (407) - (407) - (407)
Exchange differences on translation

of foreign operations - - - - 73 - (142) (69) 6,520 6,451
Net income recognized directly in

equity - - - 68 73 948 (142) 947 6,520 7,467
Transfers (net of any related tax):

Depreciation of property and
equipment revaluation reserve - - - - - (32) 32 - - -
Gain on sale of available-faale
investments - - - (29) - - - (29) - (29)

Net profit - - - - - - 25,985 25,985 1,776 27,761
Total recognized income and

expense - - - (29) - (32) 26,017 25,956 1,776 27,732
Share capital increase of:

- ordinary shares 2,000 - 136,890 - - - - 138,890 138,890
Purchase of treasury shares (1) - (258) - - - - (259) - (259)
31 December 2006 6,999 (4) 152,534 40 76 2,436 84,748 246,829 15,272 262,101
Unrealized loss on revaluation of

available-for-sale investments - - - (151) - - - (151) - (151)
Revaluation of property and
equipment - - - - - 5,239 - 5,239 - 5,239
Deferred income tax recognized on
revaluation of property and
equipment - - - - - (1,536) (36) (1,572) - (1,572)
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - - (18) - 12 (6) (4,508) (4,514)
Net income recognized directly in
equity - - - (151) (18) 3,703 (24) 3,510 (4,508) (998)
Transfers (net of related tax):
Depreciation of property and
equipment revaluation reserve - - - - - (119) 119 - - -
Loss on sale of available-feale
investments - - - 41 - - - 41 - 41
Net profit 55,963 55,963 1,788 57,751
Total recognized income and
expense - - - 41 - (119) 56,082 56,004 1,788 57,792
Share capital increase of:

- ordinary shares 1 - 153 - - - - 154 154
Sale of treasury shares - 2 168 - - - - 170 - 170
31 December 2007 7,000 (2) 152,855 (70) 58 6,020 140,806 306,667 12,552 319,219

* The amounts included within the Investments abililéor-sale fair value reserve/(deficit), Cumulatiranslation reserve and Retained earnings, in

the above table, are included within “Reserveghaconsolidated balance sheet.

Board of the Bank:

Mg

Shoinbekova G. K.
Chief Accountant

28 February 2008
Almaty
The notes on pages 9-80 form an integral partedatconsolidated financial statements.




JOINT STOCK COMPANY KAZKOMMERTSBANK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007* 2006*
(KZT million) (KZT million)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before income tax 73,655 40,361
Adjustments for:
Provision for impairment losses on interest beasisgets 5 69,956 32,887
Provision for impairment losses on other transastio 5 1,238 383
Provision for guarantees and other off-balancetst@@ingencies 5 3,186 1,548
Amortization of discount on investments held to uniy 9) ©)
Amortization of discount on debt securities issued 278 156
Income from acquisition of subsidiaries 1,555 -
Depreciation and amortization 10 2,519 1,833
Change in interest accruals, net (7,190) (10,215)
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss 13,409 2,993
Share of results of associates 20 (1,333) (1,130)
Net gain on sale of property, equipment and infalegissets (26) a7)
Net change in fair value of financial assets aalilities at fair value
though profit or loss (31,905) 1,024
Cash inflow from operating activities before chanigesperating assets
and liabilities 125,333 69,816
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Minimum reserve deposit with National Bank of thepRialic of
Kazakhstan 29,414 (162,542)
Minimum reserve deposit with Central Bank of Russtaderation (718) (2,071)
Minimum reserve deposit with National Bank of theréfyz Republic (15) (66)
Precious metals 14 807 (807)
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 173,811 (174,314)
Loans and advances to banks 88,295 (82,872)
Loans to customers (701,115) (892,293)
Other assets (5,749) (2,573)
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Loans and advances from banks (171,383) 399,210
Customer accounts 164,344 422,316
Other borrowed funds 79,756 18,200
Other liabilities (5,380) 1,950
Cash outflow from operating activities before tasati (222,600) (405,046)
Income tax paid (2,259) (3,800)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (2850) (408,846)




JOINT STOCK COMPANY KAZKOMMERTSBANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007* 2006*
(KZT million) (KZT million)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, equipment and intangibletaisse (16,261) (7,715)
Proceeds on sale of property, equipment and intéegssets 1,362 460
Proceeds on sale of investments available-for-sale 6,295 4,516
Purchase of investments available-for-sale ®.94 (6,845)
Proceeds on maturity of investments held to maturit 842 251
Purchase of investments held to maturity (848) (40)
Purchase of investments in associates (134) (200)
Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash of entitgsised (1,525) -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (1752 (9,573)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issue of ordinary share capital 154 138,890
Proceeds from sale/(repurchase) of own shares 170 (259)
Proceeds from debt securities issued 321,632 %20,2
Repayment of debt securities issued (23,944) (7,096)
Proceeds from subordinated debt 33,919 28,809
Repayment of subordinated debt (4,878) (3,129)
Dividends paid (603) (636)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 326,450 276,833
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 84,376 (141,586)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period 13 293 200,271
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate on eash
cash equivalents 567 718
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period 13 144,346 9,503

*As restated, see note 40.

Interest paid and received by the Group in casiduhe year ended 31 December 2007 amounted to KZT
143,935 million (2006: KZT 74,881 million) and KZ282,461 million (2006: KZT 128,164 million)

On behalf of the Management Board of the Bank:

My

Shoinbekov4 G.K.
Chief Accountant

28 February 2008 (25 March 2008 for the

5 effects of the restatement discussed in note 40)
Almaty Almaty

The notes on pages 9-80 form an integral part afetltensolidated financial statements.
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JOINT STOCK COMPANY KAZKOMMERTSBANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1.

ORGANISATION

JSC Kazkommertsbank (the “Bank”, or “KazkommertdJais a joint stock bank and operates in the
Republic of Kazakhstan since 1990. The Bank’'s d@ms/ are regulated by the Agency of the
Republic of Kazakhstan on regulation and supemmisad the financial market and financial

organizations (“FMSA”) in accordance with the lisenNe 48 and by the National Bank of the

Republic of Kazakhstan (“NBRK”). The Bank’s primabusiness consists of commercial banking
activities, operations with securities, foreignremcies and derivative instruments, originatinghoa

and guarantees.

The registered office of the Bank is located abZI8 Gagarin str., Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan.

The Bank has 25 branches in the Republic of Kazakhsnd a representative office in Dushanbe
(Tajikistan).

Kazkommertsbank is a parent company of the bangnogip (the “Group”) which consists of the
following enterprises consolidated in the finanatements:

Proportion or

ownership
interest/voting rights

Name Country of 2007 2006 Type of operation

operation
JSC Kazkommerts Securities Republic of 100% 100%  Securities market transactions

Kazakhstan
LLP Processing Republic of 100% 100%  Payment card and related
Company Kazakhstan services
Kazkommerts Kingdom of 100% 100%  Raising funds for the Bank on
International B.V. Netherlands international capital markets
Kazkommerts Kingdom of 100% 100%  Raising funds for the Bank on
Finance Il B.V. Netherlands international capital markets
Kazkommerts Kingdom of 100% 100%  Raising funds for the Bank on
Capital Il B.V. Netherlands international capital markets
JSC OCOPAIM Grantum Asset  Republic of 100% 100% Investment management of
Management Kazakhstan pension assets
LLP Kazkommertsbank RFCA Republic of  100% - Operations with financial

Kazakhstan instruments on Regional

financial centre of Almaty

JSC Kazkommerts Life Republic of  100% 100%  Life insurance

Kazakhstan
CJSC Kazkommertsbank Republic of 100% - Commercial bank
Tajikistan Tajikistan
JSC Kazkommertsbank Kyrgyz 93.58% 93.58% Commercial bank
Kyrgyzstan Republic
JSC Grantum APF Republic of 80.01% 80.01% Pension fund

Kazakhstan
JSC Insurance Company Republic of 65% 65% Insurance
Kazkommerts-Policy Kazakhstan
LLP Commercial bank Russia 52.11% - Commercial bank
Moscommertsbank
LLP Investment Company East Russia 50% - Securities market transactions
Capital



JSC Kazkommerts Securities is a joint stock compangl has operated under the laws of
the Republic of Kazakhstan since 1997. The comapyimary business consists of trading with
securities, including broker and dealing operati@mosisulting in investments and corporate finances,
organization of security issuances, allocation amderwriting of securities, and purchase and shle o
securities in the capacity of the agent. The compas licenseNe 0401200324 dated 27 November
2000 issued by the National Bank of the Republidkkagakhstan. In 2005 the company received
a license for investment portfolio managemant0403200363 dated 30 September 2005 issued by
the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

LLP Processing Company is a limited liability pamship and has operated under the laws of
the Republic of Kazakhstan since 9 July 2004. Tdrvapany is registered with the Ministry of Justice

of the Republic of Kazakhstan under 64313-1910FOO. The Company’s primary business is to

provide payment card processing.

Kazkommerts International BV is a limited liabilitgartnership (B.V.) and has operated under
the laws of the Kingdom of the Netherlands siné@ctober 1997. The Company was established for
the primary purpose of raising funds for the Bamkoreign capital markets. The company has license
Ne24278506 dated 1 October 1997 issued by the Chanfiti@mmerce of the Netherlands for raising
funds, including the issuance of bonds and otheurgees and entering into agreements regarding
those activities.

Kazkommerts Finance Il BV is a limited liability paership (B.V.) and has operated under the laws
of the Kingdom of the Netherlands since 13 Febri2091. The Company was established for the
primary purpose of raising funds for the Bank atign capital markets. The company has license
Ne24317181 dated 13 February 2001 issued by the CéranfbCommerce of the Netherlands for
conducting separate types of banking and otherstgpeperations.

Kazkommerts Capital Il BV is a limited liability paership (B.V.) and has operated under the laws
of the Kingdom of the Netherlands since 11 April0@0 The Company was established for
the primary purpose of raising funds for the Bamkoreign capital markets. The company has license
Ne24305284 dated 11 April 2000 issued by the Chandfe€ommerce of the Netherlands for
conducting operations.

JSC OCOPAIM Grantum Asset Management (“Grantum PAMSEa joint stock company and has
operated under the laws of the Republic of Kazakhsince 1998. The company’s primary business
is investment management of pension funds. The aognphas licenseNe 0412200149 dated
18 August 2004 on investment management of penfiimils issued by the FMSA, license
Ne 0403200199 dated 18 August 2004 on managememestiment portfolio issued by the FMSA,
licenseNe 0402200216 dated 18 August 2004 on broker andedeativity without right to custody
activities issued by the FMSA.

On 11 January 2007, LLP Kazkommertshank RFCA gtatte operations. The Company received
a licenseNe 0401201454, dated 2 March 2007 from the FMSA.

JSC Kazkommerts Life is a joint stock company aad bperated under the laws of the Republic of
Kazakhstan. The company’s primary business consfslife insurance. The company has a license
on life insurance serviceé 42-1/1 dated 28 December 2006 issued by the FMSA.

On 29 May 2007, the Board of Directors of the Baekided to establish a wholly-owned subsidiary
bank, CJSC Kazkommertsbank Tajikistan. The Bankived an approval from the FMSA #93 on
6 September 2007 for the creation of a subsidiamnkhbin Tajikistan. On 22 November 2007 and
25 December 2007 the Bank transferred cash toheicapital of CISC Kazkommertsbank Tajikistan
in the amount of KZT 604 million and KZT 602 milliprespectively. As at 31 December 2007, CSJC
Kazkommertsbank Tajikistan had yet to receive fitsrating license.

JSC Kazkommertsbank Kyrgyzstan is a joint stockkband has operated under the laws of
the Kyrgyz Republic since 1991. The Bank’s operati@re regulated by the National Bank of
the Kyrgyz Republic according to licengé@ 010. The Bank’s primary business consists of
commercial banking activities, acceptance of ddpofiom individuals, transfer of payments,
issuance of loans, operations with foreign exchargkderivative instruments, originating loans and
guarantees.
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Grantum APF is a joint stock company and has opdrsince 1998 under the laws of the Republic of
Kazakhstan. The company’s primary business consisthe receipt of pension contributions of

depositors and making pension payments to recipiemter the laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan.
The company operates based on a state licenseearec¢hipt of pension contributions and making
pension paymentse 0000019 dated 22 January 2004, issued by the FMSA.

JSC Insurance Company Kazkommerts-Policy is a jgimtk company and operates under laws of
the Republic of Kazakhstan since 1996. The comgapyimary business consists of insurance of
property, cargoes, auto insurance, civil liabilitgurance of vehicle owners, insurance of otheit civ
liabilities and reinsurance. The company has liesren voluntary insurance servigés13-8/1 DOS
dated 1 July 2005 and on obligatory insurance sesWe 13-8/1 OS dated 1 July 2005 issued by
the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

LLP Investment Company East Capital operates onstwirities market. The main activities of
LLP Investment Company East Capital are broker atealctivities and depository services.
The company has a license on depository activifesations #177-08298-000100 dated 08 February
2005, license on brokerage servid®477-08289-100000 dated 08 February 2005, licensgeater
services Ne177-08292-010000 dated 08 February 2005 and Licemsesecurities management
Nel77-08295-001000 dated 08 February 2005. At the dhtacquisition the estimated fair value of
the net assets of LLP Investment Company East @&approximated their carrying values.

Acquisitions

On 24 July 2007 the Bank acquired a 52.11% owngrshierest in the share capital of
LLP Moscommertsbank. Prior to this date, the Banksolidated LLP Moscommertsbank as the
Bank had control enabled by the trust managementeaments with LLP Moscomertsbank’s
shareholders. The Bank also entered into an agrgefoe trust management of the remaining
47.89%. Due to the nature of the assets acquiradagement has estimated that the fair value of the
net assets of LLP Moscommertsbank approximated ¢teiying values.

11



The purchase price on acquisition of LLP Moscomsiemk has been allocated as follows:

Book value at Fair value at
24 July 2007 24 July 2007
KZT million KZT million
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Assets
Cash and balances with national (central) banks 056,7 6,705
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 14,250 14,250
Loans and advances to banks 4,414 4,414
Loans to customers 181,533 181,533
Loans under reverse repurchase agreements 13,693 13,693
Property, equipment and intangible assets 1,673 1,673
Other assets 1,961 1,961
224,229 224,229
Liabilities
Loans and advances from banks 47,405 47,405
Customer accounts 29,752 29,752
Debt securities issued 109,440 109,440
Subordinated debt 19 19
Securities purchased under repurchase agreements 6 33 336
Derivative financial liabilities 13 13
Other liabilities 561 561
187,526 187,526
Net assets 36,703 36,703
Minority interest (17,577)
Share of net assets acquired, being 52.11% 19,126
Purchase consideration (17,740)
Excess of the Bank’s interest in fair value of reteds of
LLP Moscommertsbank over cash consideration paid 1,386
Purchase consideration consists of the following:
Elimination of intercompany balances with
LLP Moscommertsbank on acquisition 11,525
Net cash outflow on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid 6,215
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired, beind%?2.1 (3,494)
Total (2,721)

The purchase price was agreed in 2006, howevegdbeisition did not occur in 2007. The negative
goodwill resulted from a change in the net assktevhetween these dates.

On 4 October 2007, the Bank acquired 50% of theesghip interest of LLP Investment Company
East Capital for KZT 146 million. In accordance WIAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements”, the Bank has opted to consolidatetiésest in LLP Investment Company East Capital
as under the requirements of IFRS, it is of thenigpi that it exerts sufficient control over
the operations of the company, as the Bank hasaianter the Board of Directors of LLP Investment
Company East Capital.
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The purchase price on acquisition of LLP Investm@oimpany East Capital has been
allocated as follows:

Book value at Fair value at
4 October 2007 4 October 2007
(KZT million) (KZT million)
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Assets
Cash and balances with national (central) banks 842,6 2,684
Loans to customers 2,271 2,271
Property, equipment and intangible assets 166 166
Other assets 9,014 9,014
14,135 14,135
Liabilities
Loans and advances from banks 6,025 6,025
Other liabilities 7,481 7,481
13,506 13,506
Net assets 629 629
Minority interest (314)
Share of net assets acquired, being 50.00 % 315
Purchase consideration (146)
Excess of the Bank’s interest in fair value of resteds of
LLP Investment Company East Capital over cash
consideration paid 169
Net cash inflow on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid (146)
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired, bein@%0.0 1,342
Total 1,196

Negative goodwill on acquisition of LLP Investme@bmpany East Capital, recognized through
consolidated income statement, arose due to theHat LLP Investment Company East Capital is
attributable to the access to resources availableLP Investment Company East Capital under
the combination. These resources include affilmtm the Kazkommerts brand, access to the branch
system of the Bank and LLP Commercial bank Moscortshank and to the financing through
the Bank.

The excess of the Bank’s interest in fair valueetf assets of LLP Investment Company East Capital
and LLP Commercial bank Moscommertsbank is creditethe consolidated income statement on
the dates of acquisition.

Shareholders

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the following edfi@ders owned the issued ordinary shares of
the Bank:

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Number of Direct ownership, Number of Direct ownership,
shares % shares %
JSC Central-Asian Investment
Company * 184,679,013 32.13% 184,679,013 32.13%
European Bank of Reconstruction
and Development 48,597,741 8.45% 48,597,741 598.4
Subkhanberdin N.S. (direct) 72,570,672 12.62% 572672 12.63%
The Central Depository ** 268,227,096 46.66% 264,766 46.66%
Including the Bank of New
York 256,589,812 44.63% 260,780,242 45.37%
Other shareholders 775,299 0.14% 758,506 0.13%
Total 574,849,821 100% 574,760,698 100%
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Amount of ordinary shares is calculated net ofttkasury shares.

* JSC Central-Asian Investment Company (“CAIC") @e of the entities through which
the Directors and Management Board members owrestarthe Bank. As at 31 December 2007,
CAIC held 184,679,013 shares of the Bank (2006;881013 shares). As at 31 December 2007 this
issued share capital was owned by the followingbkBanberdin N.S. 87.21% (2006: 44.77%),
Zhusupova N.A. 12.79% (2006: 12.79%) and otherg20D6: 42.44%). As at 31 December 2007,
Subkhanberdin N.S. owns 40.64% (2006: 27.01%) efotldinary share capital of the Group through
direct and indirect ownership as a result of hiklimgs in CAIC, and Zhusupova N.A. owns 4.11%
(2006: 4.11%) through indirect ownership.

** The Central Depository is the nominal holdertbe shares; shares under nominal holding with
the Bank of New York reflect the number of the esgGlobal Depositary Receipts (‘GDRs”). Due to
the nature of GDRs, information on the owners idiseiosed. As such, according to the legislation of
the Republic of Kazakhstan those shares are repedgjsis non-voting shares. Owners of GDRs have
the option to disclose their information to the €ahDepository at any time. On disclosure of the
ownership information those shares would be consti be voting.

These consolidated financial statements were aattbfor issue by the Bank’'s Management Board
on 28 February 2008 (25 March 2008 for the effetthie restatement discussed in note 40).

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Accounting basis

These consolidated financial statements have beggamed in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the Intéomatl Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
Interpretations issued by the International FinainReporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC").

These consolidated financial statements are predeint millions of Kazakhstan tenge (*KZT”),
unless otherwise indicated. These consolidatedndiaha statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for the meawment at fair value of certain financial
instruments and measurement of land and buildihgsvalued amounts according to International
Accounting Standard (“IAS”) No. 16 “Property, Plarid Equipment”.

Kazkommertsbank and its subsidiaries maintain thegounting records in accordance with IFRS.
These consolidated financial statements have beepaped based on the accounting records of
the Bank and its subsidiaries. The preparatiorookolidated financial statements in conformity with
IFRS requires management to make estimates andnp8ens that affect the reported amount of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingesets and liabilities at the date of the conatd
financial statements and reported amounts of rea®rand expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimatestifiates that are particularly susceptible to ckbang
relate to the provisions for impairment losses tedfair value of financial instruments.

Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements of eadity of the Group are measured using the currency
that best reflects the economic substance of tldenying events and circumstances relevant to that
entity (the “functional currency”). The reportimgrrency of the consolidated financial statemests i
the Kazakhstan tenge.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporagefinancial statements of the Bank and entities
controlled by the Bank for the year ended 31 Deaa@007. Control is achieved where the Bank has
the power to govern the financial and operatingcpes of an investee entity so as to obtain bemnefit
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposeduning the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of actjarsior up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the fahastatements of subsidiaries to bring
the accounting policies used into line with thoseduby the Bank.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income exygenses are eliminated on consolidation.

The difference, if any, between the carrying amafnhinority interest and the amount received on
its purchase is recognized in equity attributabléhe equity holders of the parent.

In translating the financial statements of a fomemgubsidiary into the presentation currency for
incorporation in the consolidated financial statatae the Group follows a translation policy in
accordance with IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes orelgn Exchange Rates” (“IAS 21”) and
performs the following procedures:

. Assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-manyetof the foreign entity are translated at
closing rate;

. Income and expense items of the foreign entitytianeslated at exchange rates at the dates of
transactions;

. Equity items of the foreign entity are translatééxchange rates at the dates of transactions;
»  All resulting exchange differences are classifie@gquity until the disposal of the investment;

. On disposal of the investment in the foreign entitlated exchange differences are recognized
in the consolidated income statement.

Business combinations

The assets, liabilities and contingent liabilitiesa subsidiary are measured at their fair values a
the date of acquisition. Any excess of the costagjfuisition over the fair values of the identifiallet
assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Anycaefcy of the cost of acquisition below the fair
values of the identifiable net assets acquired. (idéscount on acquisition) is credited
to the consolidated income statement in the pesfatquisition.

The minority interest is initially measured at thénority’s proportion of the fair values of the atsg
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognizethe equity attributable to equity holders of thegpa
and net income attributable to minority sharehatemterests are shown separately in
the consolidated balance sheet and income stateraspéctively.

The Group accounts for increases in ownership afrdrolled entity by revaluing all identified asset
and liabilities of the subsidiary to fair value the date of exchange in proportion to the amounts
attributable to the additional interest acquirg@oodwill is recognized for any excess of the cdst o
the increase over the Group’s interest in theaievhlue of the identifiable assets and liab#itie

For a business combination involving an entity asibess under common control, all assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary are measured at theying values recorded in the stand-alone findncia
statements of the subsidiary. The difference betvtbe carrying value of the acquired share in net
assets of the subsidiary and the cost of acquisitiee recorded directly in equity attributable to

the equity holders of the parent.
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Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Groupnisaiposition to exercise significant influence,
but is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venturggn8icant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of ihweestee, but is not control or joint control over
those entities

The results and assets and liabilities of assaciate incorporated in these financial statemenitgus
the equity method of accounting.

Investments in associates are carried in the ciolaget! balance sheet at cost and adjusted for gthodw
and for post-acquisition changes in the Group'srestad the net assets of the associate, less any
impairment in the value of individual investmentfisses of associates in excess of the Group’s
interest in those associates are not recognized.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the @i®share of the fair values of the identifiablseds,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the as&te at the date of acquisition is recognized axigall.

The goodwill is included in the carrying amounttieé investment and is assessed for impairment as
part of the investment. Any deficiency of the coktcquisition below the Group’s share of the fair
values of the identifiable assets, liabilities arhtingent liabilities of the associate at the datte
acquisition (i.e. discount on acquisition) is ctediin the consolidated income statement in thinger

of acquisition.

Where a Group company transacts with an assodidbe @sroup, profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevassociate. Losses may provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred in whicle @ggpropriate provision is made for impairment.

Details of the Group’s investments in associatas|uding summarized financial information of
the associates, as at and for the years ended &niber 2007 and 2006 are presented below:

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2007:

Name of associated Ownership Fair value of Total assets cTotal liabilities of Revenue of Net profit
company interest investmentsin  associated associated associated
associates company company company

(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million)

JSC APF Ular Umit 49.35% 1,752 3,840 342 5,143 1,805
JSC OCOPAIM Zhetysu 50.00% 1,433 2,909 12 1,522 902
LLP First Credit

Bureau 18.40% 37 227 7 170 77

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2006:

Name of associated Ownership Fair value of Total assets cTotal liabilities of Revenue of Net profit
Company interest  investments in  associated associated associated
associates company company company

(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million)

JSC APF Ular Umit 41.18% 725 2,568 778 3,469 806
JSCOCOPAIM Zhetysu 50.00% 993 1,995 10 1,483 823
LLP First Credit

Bureau 18.40% 37 146 3 19 (37)
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On 1 November 2006 the Group acquired 50% shal&@1 OCOPAIM Zhetysu. As at 31 December
2007 and 2006, the Group has not consolidated JSORAIM Zhetysu as the Bank does not have
the power to govern the financial and operatingcjes of the company so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. This is attributable to there being representatives of the Group on the Board of
Directors.

On 17 July 2007, the Bank acquired 327 ordinaryeshaf JSC APF Ular Umit, which relates to
8.175% of the share capital of tbempany. After the acquisition the Bank's interesthe share
capital of JISC APF Ular Umit was 49.35%.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidianjointly controlled entity represents the exceks

the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interesthe fair value of the identifiable assets, lidigi$

and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary, assteiar jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as amset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment loss. The Grouglisypfor goodwill arising on the acquisition of

an associate is described under ‘Investments wcagss’ above.

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at leashwadly. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

If the Group’s interest in the net fair value oé tidentifiable assets, liabilities and contingéaiilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, theps

(a) Reassesses the identification and measuremene d@ithup’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities and the measurement of th& of the combination; and

(b) Recognizes immediately in consolidated income statgé any excess remaining after that
reassessment.

On disposal of an investment, the amount of godaduiitibutable is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.

Recognition and measurement of financial instrumersgt

The Group recognizes financial assets and liadsliton its consolidated balance sheet when it
becomes a party to the contractual obligation ofratrument. Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets and liabilities are recognizedgisiettlement date accounting. Regular way purshase
of financial instruments that will be subsequentigasured at fair value between trade date and
settlement date are accounted for in the same w&yracquired instruments.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially rgonzed at fair value plus, in the case of a finahasset

or financial liability not at fair value through qfit or loss transaction costs that are directly
attributable to acquisition or issue of the finah@sset or financial liability. The accounting ips

for subsequent re-measurement of these items sesied in the respective accounting policies set
out below.

Cash and balances with national (central) banks
Cash and balances with national (central) bankisideccash on hand and unrestricted balances on
correspondent and time deposit accounts with thiéohkl Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan,

Central Bank of the Russian Federation, and Nalti@snk of Kyrgyz Republic with original
maturity within 90 days.
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For the purposes of determining cash flows, cashcash equivalents includes advances to banks in
countries included in the Organization for Econorio-operation and Development (“OECD”),
except for margin deposits for operations with fitasards, which may be converted to cash within
a short period of time. The minimum reserve depaiuired by the Central Bank of the Russian
Federation, the National Bank of the Republic okz#ldhstan and the National Bank of the Kyrgyz
Republic are not included in cash equivalents.

Precious metals

Assets and liabilities denominated in precious ieetee translated at the current rate computeddbase
on the second fixing of the London Metal Exchargfes using the KZT/USD exchange rate effective
at the date. Changes in the bid prices are recardeet gain/(loss) on foreign exchange and preiou

metals operations.

Loans and advances to banks

In the normal course of business, the Group maistadvances or deposits for various periods of
time with other banks. Loans and advances to bailts a fixed maturity term are subsequently

measured at amortized cost using the effectiveraaterate method, and are carried net of an
allowance for impairment. Those that do not hawedi maturities are carried at cost. Loans and
advances to banks are carried net of any allowBmagepairment losses.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value thragh profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value tlgio profit or loss represent derivative instrumests
securities (1) acquired principally for the purpadeselling them in the near future, (2) which are
a part of a portfolio of identified financial ingtnents that are managed together and for whicle iker
evidence of a recent and actual pattern of sham-f@ofit taking or (3) which are designated by the
Group at fair value through profit or loss upontiali recognition. A financial asset other than
a financial asset held for trading may be desighatefair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition if: (1) such designation eliminatessignificantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or (2 financial asset forms part of a group of finahcia
assets or financial liabilities or both, which iamaged and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group’s docueterisk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided intely@n that basis; or (3) it forms part of a contrac
containing one or more embedded derivatives, arl 38 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” permits the entire combined contrasst or liability) to be designated as at faiugal
through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit @slare initially recorded and subsequently measaired
fair value. Fair value adjustment on financial é&ssad liabilities at fair value through profitloss is
recognized in the consolidated income statementther period. The Group does not reclassify
financial instruments in or out of this categoryilelithey are held.

The Group enters into derivative financial instrumseto manage currency and liquidity risks and for
trading purposes. These instruments include forsvard foreign currency, precious metals and
securities. Derivative financial instruments endengto by the Group are not designated as hedges
and do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Derivative financial instruments

In the normal course of business, the Group eritecs various derivative financial instruments
including forwards, swaps and options. Derivatiaes initially recognized at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are sylesaly re-measured to their fair value at each
balance sheet date. The fair values are estimatsetion quoted market prices or pricing models that
take into account the current market and contrhgitiees of the underlying instruments and other
factors. Derivatives are carried as assets whan fdie value is positive and as liabilities whernig
negative. Derivatives are included in financiaeds and liabilities at fair value through profitloss

in the consolidated balance sheet. Gains and lagsse#ting from these instruments are included in
Net gain/loss from financial assets and liabilig$air value through profit or loss in the condated
income statement.
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Derivative instruments embedded in other financiatruments are treated as separate derivatives if
their risks and characteristics are not closehatesl to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not carried at fair value with urized gains and losses reported in consolidatedrnieco
statement. An embedded derivative is a componeattofbrid (combined) financial instrument that
includes both the derivative and a host contradth whe effect that some of the cash flows of
the combined instrument vary in a similar way ttand-alone derivative.

Securities repurchase and reverse repurchase agreents and lending transactions

In the normal course of business the Group entdossale and purchase back agreements (“repos”)
and securities purchased under agreements to (&selerse repos”). Repos and reverse repos are
utilized by the Group as an element of its treasugypagement.

A repo is an agreement to transfer a financial tassanother party in exchange for cash or other
consideration and a concurrent obligation to remedbe financial assets at a future date for aouarn
equal to the cash or other consideration exchapgiedinterest. These agreements are accounted for
as financing transactions. Financial assets sottturepos are retained in the consolidated fin&ncia
statements and the consideration received undee thgreements is recorded as a collateralized
deposit received within balances due to banks astbmer accounts.

Assets purchased under reverse repos are recardide iconsolidated financial statements as cash
placed on deposit which is collateralized by sdmsgiand other assets and are classified within
balances due from banks and loans to customers.

In the event that assets purchased under revasss age sold to third parties, the results arerdsxzb
with the gain or loss included in net gains/(loys#srespective assets. Any related income or esgen
arising from the pricing difference between purehasd sale of the underlying assets is recognized
as interest income or expense in the consolidatsuiie statement.

The Group enters into securities repurchase agmsnmend securities lending transactions under
which it receives or transfers collateral in acemck with normal market practice. Under standard
terms for repurchase transactions in the Republitaaakhstan and other CIS states, the recipient of
collateral has the right to sell or repledge thkateral, subject to returning equivalent secusitom
settlement of the transaction, only if the couraetypfails to meet its obligations per the agreenoen
the lending transaction.

As at 31 December 2007 the fair value of securitrassferred as collateral under loans under
repurchase agreements amounted to KZT 82,147 m{#0606: KZT 262,008 million).

As at 31 December 2007 securities received astedlaunder reverse repurchase agreements
amounted to KZT 21,501 million (2006: KZT 96,11 7Iman).

Loans to customers

Loans to customers are non-derivative assets wdl for determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market other than those classifiegkler categories of financial assets.

Loans to customers granted by the Group with fimeturities are initially recognized at fair value
plus initial direct costs and fees that are intetpahe interest rate. For loans issued at lowant
market terms the difference between the nominalusrnof consideration given and the present value
of future cash flows discounted at market ratenagption is recognized in the consolidated income
statement in the period the loan is issued asdams@rigination of assets. Subsequently, the cagry
amount of such loans is adjusted for amortizatibthe losses on origination and the related income
is recorded as interest income using the effedtitarest rate method. Loans to customers that do no
have fixed maturities are carried at cost. Loansustomers are carried net of any allowance for
impairment losses.
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Write off of loans and advances

Loans and advances to banks and customers arerwdft against the allowance for impairment
losses when deemed uncollectible. Loans and adsaaoe written off after management has
exercised all possibilities available to collectcamts due to the Group and after the Group has sold
all available collateral. Subsequent recoveriearabunts previously written off are reflected as an
offset to the charge for impairment of financiakets in the consolidated income statement in
the period of recovery.

Allowance for impairment losses
Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group accounts for impairment losses of fin@nassets when there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assetsnmpaired. Impairment losses are measured as
the difference between carrying amounts and theeptevalue of expected future cash flows,

including amounts recoverable from guarantees aildteral, discounted at the financial asset's

original effective interest rate. Such impairmergdes are not reversed unless in a subsequend perio
the amount of the impairment loss decreases anddabease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, sashrecoveries, in which case the previously

recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjustfean allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part bhancial asset or part of a group of similar ficel
assets) is derecognized where:

» therights to receive cash flows from the assetlepired;

* the Group has transferred its rights to receivé ¢lsvs from the asset, or retained the right to
receive cash flows from the asset, but has asswmneabligation to pay them in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-tgidwarrangement; and

* the Group either (a) has transferred substant#llithe risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantiallytlafl risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

A financial asset is derecognized when it has bwansferred and the transfer qualifies for
derecognition. A transfer requires that the Greitper: (a) transfers the contractual rights tenes

the asset's cash flows; or (b) retains the righth® asset’s cash flows but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay those cash flows to a third pa#titer a transfer, the Group reassesses the etdent
which it has retained the risks and rewards of aglmp of the transferred asset. If substantidlly a
the risks and rewards have been retained, the ass®tins on the consolidated balance sheet.
If substantially all of the risks and rewards hdween transferred, the asset is derecognized.
If substantially all the risks and rewards havernbeeither retained nor transferred, the Group asses
whether or not is has retained control of the assktit has not retained control, the asset is
derecognized. Where the Group has retained coofttbe asset, it continues to recognize the deset
the extent of its continuing involvement.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the adtion is discharged, cancelled, or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaceg bBnother from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing ligpibre substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition of draginal liability and the recognition of a new

liability, and the difference in the respective rgarg amounts is recognized in the consolidated
income statement.
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Finance leases

Financial leases are leases that transfer sutmtgrail the risks and rewards incident to ownegpsbii

an asset. Title may or may not eventually be texmsfl. Whether a lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease depends on the substance dfatigaction rather than the form of the contract.
The lease classified as finance lease if:

»  The lease transfers ownership of the asset tetseé by the end of the lease term;

. The lessee has the option to purchase the asseprte which is expected to be sufficiently
lower than the fair value at the date the optiotobges exercisable such that, at the inception of
the lease, it is reasonably certain that the optiiroe exercised;

The lease term is for the major part of the econdifié of the asset even if title is not transfegre

* Atthe inception of the lease the present valut@fminimum lease payments amounts to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the leasedet; and

» The leased assets are of a specialized naturettzatconly the lessee can use them without major
modifications being made.

The Group as a lessor presents finance leasearss dmd initially measures them in the amount equal
to net investment in the lease. Subsequently tleegrétion of finance income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constanogierrate of return on the Group’s net investment i
the finance lease.

Investments held to maturity

Investments held to maturity are debt securitidt weterminable or fixed payments. The Group has
the positive intent and ability to hold them to orétyy. Such securities are carried at amortized,cos

using the effective interest rate method, lessalloyance for impairment. Amortized discounts are

recognized in interest income over the period teunity using the effective interest method.

Investments available-for-sale

Investments available-for-sale represent debt apityeinvestments that are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time. Investments availalibe sale are initially recorded at fair value and

subsequently are measured at fair value, with seemeasurement recognized directly in equity,

except for impairment losses, foreign exchange ggainlosses and interest income accrued using
the effective interest method, which are recognididctly in the consolidated income statement.

When sold, the gain/loss previously recorded initggs recycled through the consolidated income

statement.

Dividends received on equity investments are inetudn dividend received in the consolidated
income statement.

When there is objective evidence that such seesifitave been impaired, the cumulative loss préyious

recognized in equity is removed from equity andgetzed in the consolidated income statement for
the period. Reversals of such impairment lossedatnt instruments, which are objectively related to
events occurring after the impairment, are recaghiin the consolidated income statement for
the period. Reversals of such impairment losseseguity instruments are not recognized in

the consolidated income statement.

Property, equipment and intangible assets
Property and equipment, except for buildings arteoteal estate and construction, and intangible
assets are carried at historical cost less acctedutiepreciation. Buildings and other real estag: a

construction are carried at market value. Deptiecian assets under construction and those noégla
in service commences from the date the asseteadg for their intended use.
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Depreciation of property, equipment and intangdsdsets is charged on the carrying value of property
and equipment and is designed to write off assets their useful economic lives. Depreciation is
calculated on a straight line basis at the follapémnual prescribed rates:

Buildings and other real estate 1-10%
Furniture and equipment 4-50%
Intangible assets 15-50%

Leasehold improvements are amortized over theolifehe related leased asset. Expenses related to
repairs and renewals are charged when incurrednghdied in operating expenses unless they qualify
for capitalization.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipnand intangible assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to assess whether they arededcar excess of their recoverable amounts.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair vdéss costs to sell and value in use, where carrying
values exceed this estimated recoverable amous#tsaare written down to their recoverable amount.
An impairment is recognized in the respective pkrzmd is included in operating expenses. After
the recognition of an impairment loss the depremmatharge for property, equipment and intangible
assets is adjusted in future periods to allocateatisets’ revised carrying value, less its residalale

(if any), on a systematic basis over its remainiagful life.

Land and buildings held for use in supply of sesicor for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated balance sheet at their revalueduats, being the fair value at the date of

revaluation, determined from market-based evidelmgean appraisal undertaken by professional

independent appraisers, less any subsequent aatachudepreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed suifficient regularity such that the carrying amount

does not differ materially from that which would Betermined using fair values at the balance sheet
date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluat@insuch land and buildings is credited to
the property and equipment revaluation reserveemxto the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease for the same asset previously recognizad expense, in which case the increase is adedite
to the consolidated income statement to the exiénlhe decrease previously charged. A decrease
the in carrying amount arising on the revaluatibsweh land and buildings is charged as an expense
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if &eid in the properties revaluation reserve relating

a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged tosctidated income statement. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued property, thébaitable revaluation surplus remaining in the prgpe
and equipment revaluation reserve is transferregtdy to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the ¢wamedeferred tax expense.

The current tax expense is based on taxable poofihe year. Taxable profit differs from net ptais
reported in the consolidated income statement Iseciexcludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it furtlsecludes items that are never taxable or dedectibl
The Group’s current tax expense is calculated usingates that have been enacted during the negort
period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payablecoovwerable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the finanstatements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accourtedising the balance sheet liability method. Drefg

tax liabilities are generally recognized for akkahle temporary differences and deferred tax assets
recognized to the extent that it is probable thaable profits will be available against which detihle
temporary differences can be utilized. Such asmadsliabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initi@cognition (other than in a business combinatudn)
other assets and liabilities in a transaction dfffeicts neither the tax profit nor the accountingfip
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxabdenporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in yeimntures, except where the Group is able to cbntro
the reversal of the temporary difference and jiriable that the temporary difference will notaese

in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assetsg@risom deductible temporary differences assodiate
with such investments and interests are only razedrto the extent that it is probable that theitehe
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilitee benefits of the temporary differences and ey
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is veteat each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that suffitiexxable profits will be available to allow all part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates thateapected to apply in the period when the liabibt
settled or the asset is realized. Deferred takasged or credited in the consolidated income rsizibe,
except when it relates to items charged or creditegttly to equity, in which case the deferred igx
also dealt with in equity.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred incomdidbitities are offset and reported net on the
consolidated balance sheet if:

» The Group has a legally enforceable right to sktcofrent income tax assets against current
income tax liabilities; and

« Deferred income tax assets and the deferred incarmkabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on the same taeatifty.

Countries where the Group operates also have vadther taxes, which are assessed on the Group’s
activities. These taxes are included as a comparfesperating expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Loans and advances from banks, customer accountselot securities issued and other borrowed
funds

Loans and advances from banks, customer accowhtssécurities issued and other borrowed funds are
initially recognized at fair value less transactioosts. Subsequently, amounts due are stated at
amortized cost and any difference between net pdscand the redemption value is recognized in the
consolidated income statement over the periodebtrrowings using the effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has @pirésgal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, and it is probable that an outflonesburces embodying economic benefits will be requi
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimatinefobligation can be made.

Financial guarantee contracts issued and letters afredit

Financial guarantee contracts and letters of cieslied by the Group provide for specified paymemnts
be made in order to reimburse the holder for a insarred such that payments are made when a
specified debtor fails to make payment when dueewurde original or modified terms of a debt
instrument. Such financial guarantee contractsleiters of credit issued are initially recognizedadr
value. Subsequently they are measured at the hafhé) the amount recognized as a provision in
accordance with 1AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent ilikes and Contingent Assets”; and (b) the amount
initially recognized less, where appropriate, cuative amortization of initial premium revenue reeel
over the financial guarantee contracts or letteredit issued.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in th@salidated balance sheet but are disclosed urfless t
possibility of any outflow in settlement is remot&. contingent asset is not recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet but disclosed whenflamiof economic benefits is probable.
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Share capital and share premium reserve

Share capital is recognized at historic cost. &haremium reserve represents the excess of
contributions over the nominal value of the shasesed. Gains and losses on sales of treasury stock
are charged or credited to share premium reserve.

External costs directly attributable to the issfim@w shares, other than on a business combination,
are deducted from equity net of any related inctames.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized intg@s a reduction in the period in which they are
declared. Dividends that are declared after thartz@l sheet date are treated as a subsequent event
under IAS 10 “Events after the Balance Sheet DEtAS 10") and disclosed accordingly.

Preference shares

Preference shares having a prescribed dividend @atreme considered to be compound financial
instruments in accordance with the substance ofctirgractual arrangement and accordingly the
liability and equity components are presented s#pbyr in the consolidated balance sheet. On initial
recognition the equity component is assigned tisedual amount after deducting from the initial
carrying amount of the instrument as a whole thevalue determined for the liability component.
The fair value of the liability component on initicognition is estimated by discounting expected
future cash flows at a market interest rate foomgarable debt instrument. Subsequently the Itgbili
component is measured according to the same pléscysed for subordinated debt, and the equity
component is measured according to the same piésaised for share capital.

Retirement and other benefit obligations

In accordance with the requirements of the ledgasiaif the countries in which the Group operates
certain percentages of pension payments are withfreim total disbursements to staff to be
transferred to pension funds, such that a portigatary expense is withheld from the employee and
instead paid to a pension fund on behalf of theleyag. This expense is charged in the period in
which the related salaries are earned. Upon regintrll retirement benefit payments are made by the
pension funds as selected by employees. The Groep ribt have any pension arrangements separate
from the state pension system of the countrieshithvthe Group operates. In addition, the Group has
no post-retirement benefits or other significanhpensated benefits requiring accrual.

Recognition of income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized on@nahdasis using the effective interest method.
The effective interest method is a method of calibod) the amortized cost of a financial asset or
a financial liability (or group of financial assats financial liabilities) and of allocating thetémest
income or interest expense over the relevant peflibd effective interest rate is the rate that #yac
discounts estimated future cash payments or receéipbugh the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter perithe net carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar finaressets has been written down (partly writtewrgo
as a result of an impairment loss, interest incisnénereafter recognized using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the psepof measuring the impairment loss.

Interest income also includes income earned onsinvents in securities. Other income is credited
to the consolidated income statement when theegtladnsactions are completed.

Loan origination fees are deferred, together Withrelated direct costs, and recognized as antadjos

to the effective interest rate of the loan. Where probable that a loan commitment will lead tpacific
lending arrangement, the loan commitment fees aferéd, together with the related direct costs,
and recognized as an adjustment to the effectieeast rate of the resulting loan. Where it is ketli

that a loan commitment will lead to a specific lemgdarrangement, the loan commitment fees are
recognized in the consolidated income statement thneeremaining period of the loan commitment.
Where a loan commitment expires without resultm@ iloan, the loan commitment fee is recognized
in the consolidated income statement on expirynLeervicing fees are recognized as revenue as the
services are provided. Loan syndication fees ategmized in the consolidated income statement
when the syndication has been completed. All ottmenmissions are recognized when services are
provided.
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Underwriting income and expenses

Underwriting income includes net written insuramremiums and commissions earned on ceded
reinsurance reduced by the net change in the ue@gmemium reserve, claims paid, the provision of
insurance losses and loss adjustment expenseppiog acquisition cost.

Net written insurance premiums represent grosdemripremiums less premiums ceded to reinsurers.
Upon inception of a contract, premiums are recomdedritten and are earned on a pro rata basis over
the term of the related policy coverage. The uregpremium reserve represents the portion of the
premiums written relating to the unexpired termsoferage and is included within other assets in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Losses and loss adjustments are charged to thelmated income statement as incurred.

Commissions earned on ceded reinsurance contraetsegorded to the consolidated income
statement at the date the reinsurance contragditiemvand deemed enforceable.

Policy acquisition costs, comprising commission&l fia insurance agents and brokers, which vary
with and are directly related to the production mdw business, are deferred, recorded in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet withinr@hksets, and are amortized over the period in
which the related written premiums are earned andeviewed for impairment in circumstances
where its carrying amount may not be recoverallind asset is greater than the recoverable amount
it is written down immediately. All other costs aezognized as expenses when incurred

Reserve for insurance losses and loss adjustmentpexses

The reserve for insurance losses and loss adjusemeernses is included in the consolidated balance
sheet within reserves and is based on the estinzatexnint payable on claims reported prior to the
balance sheet date, which have not yet been sedttetl an estimate of incurred but not reported
claims relating to the reporting period.

Due to the absence of prior experience, the redervimcurred but not reported claims (*IBNR”) is
determined by applying current government guidasprovided by the FMSA. Under this guidance,
the IBNR reserve is calculated as being equaldé@itpected loss ratio for each line of businesegim
the value of coverage, less the losses actuallyrieg.

The methods for determining such estimates andlegtang the resulting reserves are continuously
reviewed and updated. Resulting adjustments alexteél in current income.

Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business, the Group cedasurance. Such reinsurance arrangements
provide for greater diversification of businesdpwl management to control exposure to potential
losses arising from legal risks and provide add#iaapacity for growth.

Reinsurance assets include balances due from raims companies for paid and unpaid losses and
loss adjustment expenses, and ceded unearned pmrsmAmounts receivable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the clainbillig associated with the reinsured policy.
Reinsurance is recorded gross unless a right seb#xists and is included in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets within other assets.

Reinsurance contracts are assessed to ensure rtatwiiting risk, defined as the reasonable
possibility of significant loss, and timing riskefihed as the reasonable possibility of a significa
variation in the timing of cash flows, are transéerby the Group to the reinsurer.

The Group regularly assesses its reinsurance desétspairment. A reinsurance asset is impaifed i

there is objective evidence that the Group mayr@cive all amounts due to it under the terms ef th

contract and that event has a reliably measurafy@dt on the amounts that the Group will receive
from the reinsurer.
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Foreign currency translation

The individual financial statements of each groaptg are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operatgés functional currency). In preparing the
financial statements of the individual entities, matary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the entity’s functional cnecse (foreign currencies) are translated at the
appropriate spot rates of exchange rates prevadindhe balance sheet date. Transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency ammanted for at the exchange rates prevailinget th
date of the transaction. Profits and losses aribimg these translations are included in net gain o
foreign exchange operations.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated findnstiatements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are expressed in KZhgigixchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date. Income and expense items are translateceavitrage exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuated significantly during tpatiod, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange aliffes arising, if any, are classified as equity and
recognized in the Group’s foreign currency tramstatreserve. Such exchange differences are
recognized in the consolidated income statemerthénperiod in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on #oguisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation fadslated at the closing rate.

Rates of exchange

The exchange rates used by the Group in the pramax the consolidated financial statements as at
year end are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2007 2006
KZT/1 US Dollar 120.30 127.00
KZT/1 Euro 177.17 167.12
KZT/1 Kyrgyz Som 3.43 3.36
KZT/1 Russian Rouble 4.92 4.82

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andriga net on the consolidated balance sheet wheen th
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off tbcognized amounts and the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realize the assktattle the liability simultaneously. In accountifor a
transfer of a financial asset that does not qudtify derecognition, the Group does not offset the
transferred asset and the associated liability.

Fiduciary activities

The Group provides trustee services to its custenfdso the Group provides depositary services to
its customers, which include transactions with sées on their depository accounts. Assets acckpte
and liabilities incurred under the fiduciary adiies are not included in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The Group accepts the opaatirisk on these activities, but the Group’s
customers bear the credit and market risks assalcvaith such operations.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of thau@tbat is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment) or in providing pradwmst services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is suligeasks and rewards that are different from éhos
of other segments. Segments with a majority of maeeearned from sales to external customers and
whose revenue, result or assets are ten per canbi of all the segments are reported separately.
Geographical segments of the Group have not begorteel separately within these consolidated
financial statements since the management of thmugshbelieves that the main segment is the
Commonwealth of Independent States, including thepuRlic of Kazakhstan, (CIS), which is
characterized by similar risks and profitability. &ddition, over 90% of the Group’s operations are
conducted within the CIS.
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Areas of significant management judgment and sourseof estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated finahstatements requires management to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reportembiata of assets and liabilities at the balancetshee
date and the reported amount of income and expetsesg the period ended. Management

evaluates its estimates and judgments on an ondmsg. Management bases its estimates and
judgments on historical experience and on variaherofactors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may difiem these estimates under different assumptions
or conditions. The following estimates and judgteeare considered important to the portrayal of the
Group’s financial condition.

Allowance for impairment of loans and receivables

The Group regularly reviews its loans and recemslib assess for impairment. The Group’s loan
impairment provisions are established to recogmeerred impairment losses in its portfolio of lsan
and receivables. The Group considers accountirigna&sts related to allowance for impairment of
loans and receivables a key source of estimaticentainty because (i) they are highly susceptible t
change from period to period as the assumptionatdhture default rates and valuation of potential
losses relating to impaired loans and receivabiedased on recent performance experience, and (ii)
any significant difference between the Group’sreated losses and actual losses would require the
Group to record provisions which could have a niatémpact on its financial statements in future
periods.

The Group uses management’'s judgment to estimataiiount of any impairment loss in cases
where a borrower has financial difficulties andréhare few available sources of historical data
relating to similar borrowers. Similarly, the Groeptimates changes in future cash flows based on
past performance, past customer behavior, observdéla indicating an adverse change in the
payment status of borrowers in a group, and nati@nkcal economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the group. Management usiesaéss based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics and objectvidence of impairment similar to those in the
group of loans and receivables. The Group uses geament’s judgment to adjust observable data for
a group of loans or receivables to reflect curormumstances not reflected in historical data.

The allowances for impairment of financial assatthie consolidated financial statements have been
determined on the basis of existing economic aritigad conditions. The Group is not in a position
to predict what changes in conditions will takecglan Kazakhstan and what effect such changes
might have on the adequacy of the allowances fpaimment of financial assets in future periods.

The carrying amount of the allowance for impairmehloans to customers as at 31 December 2007
is KZT 140,363 million (2006: KZT 73,936 million).

Valuation of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments that are classified at faiue through profit or loss or available for saled all
derivatives, are stated at fair value. The fairugabf such financial instruments is the estimated
amount at which the instrument could be exchangeal ¢urrent transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. If aotpd market price is available for an instrumemé, t
fair value is calculated based on the market pi¢ben valuation parameters are not observable in
the market or cannot be derived from observableketgorices, the fair value is derived through
analysis of other observable market data and teeofisliscounted cash flow pricing models. Where
market-based valuation parameters are not diretidgrvable, management will make a judgment as
to its best estimate of that parameter in ordateti@rmine a reasonable reflection of how the market
would be expected to price the instrument. In @zarg this judgment, a variety of tools are used
including proxy observable data, historical data] axtrapolation techniques. The best evidence of
fair value of a financial instrument at initial gmition is the transaction price unless the imagnt

is evidenced by comparison with data from obseevaimarkets. Any difference between the
transaction price and the value based on a valuétichnique is not recognized in the consolidated
income statement on initial recognition. Subsequg@ims or losses are only recognized to the extent
that it arises from a change in a factor that mgpketicipants would consider in setting a price.
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The Group considers that the accounting estimddeckto valuation of financial instruments where
quoted markets prices are not available is a keycgoof estimation uncertainty because: (i) it is
highly susceptible to change from period to perizecause it requires management to make
assumptions about interest rates, volatility, ergearates, the credit rating of the counterparty,
valuation adjustments and specific feature of thedactions and (ii) the impact that recognizing a
change in the valuations would have on the assptated on its consolidated balance sheet as well a
its profit/(loss) could be material.

Had management used different assumptions regatbagnterest rates, volatility, exchange rates,
the credit rating of the counterparty and valuatamjustments, a larger or smaller change in the
valuation of financial instruments where quoted keaprices are not available would have resulted
that could have had a material impact on the Gogported net income.

The Group uses quoted market prices from indepéndfEmmation sources, for all its financial assets
and liabilities recorded at fair value, with thecegtion of derivative financial instruments, whiate
valued using a valuation model based on market data

The carrying amount of derivatives at fair valuassfollows as at 31 December 2007 and 2006:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
Derivative assets 42,858 7,087
Derivative liabilities (7,730) (3,554)

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted alhefrtew and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standardar8dthe “IASB”) and the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (the “IFRICY)tbe IASB that are relevant to its operations and
effective for reporting periods beginning on 1 Jayu2007. The adoption of these new and revised
Standards and Interpretations has not resultedmifisant changes to the Group’s accounting pesci
that have affected the amounts reported for theentior prior years.

IFRS 7 — During 2007, the Group adopted IFRS 7 dRaial Instruments: Disclosure” (“IFRS 77).
The standard replaces IAS 30 “Disclosures in tmaf¢ial Statements of Banks and Similar Financial
Institutions” and the disclosure provisions in IAR “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation”. IFRS 7 requires disclosure of tlgmiftance of financial instruments for an entity’s
financial position and performance and of quakli&tand quantitative information about exposure to
risks arising from financial instruments. Adoptioh IFRS 7 did not affect the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial instrumentghi@ consolidated financial statements. The
required disclosures are included in these findistéements.

Amendment to IAS 1 — “Capital Disclosures” - On A8gust 2005, the IASB issued an amendment
to IAS 1 which requires certain disclosures to lenregarding the entity’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing capital. Additional infoioratwas disclosed in the consolidated financials
statements for the current and comparative regppériods as required by amended IAS 1

Standards and interpretations issued and not yet aapted

At the date of authorization of these financiatestgents, other than the Standards and Interpregtio
adopted by the Group in advance of their effectlages, the following Interpretations were in issue
but not yet effective.

IFRS 8 — The IASB issued IFRS 8 “Operating SegniemsDecember 2006. This will replace
IAS 14 “Segment Reporting” for accounting periogginning on or after 1 January 2009. IFRS 8
requires segmental analysis reported by an ertityet based on information used by management.
Management is currently assessing the impact chdoption of IFRS 8.

The 1ASB issued a revised IAS 23 “Borrowing Cosis”March 2007. Entities are required to
capitalize borrowing costs attributable to the depment or construction of intangible assets or
property, plant or equipment. The standard iscéffe for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009 and is not expected to have a rabééféct on the Group.
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Amendment to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Staats” — On 6 September 2007, the IASB
issued an amendment to IAS 1 which changes theiwayhich non-owner changes in equity are
required to be presented. It also changes thes taf primary financial statements as they will be
referred to in IFRS but does not require that theEseenamed in an entity’s financial statementse T
Group does not expect the adoption of the amendinel&S 1 to have an impact on the financial
statements. The amendment to IAS 1 is effectivgpéoiods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.

IFRIC 11 “IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Trans@s’ - On 30 November 2006 IFRIC issued
IFRIC 11 which requires that treasury share tratisas are treated as equity- settled, and sharedbas
payments involving equity instruments of the padriuld be treated as cash-settled. The Group does
not expect the adoption of IFRIC 11 to have a nmtémpact on the Group’s income statement or
financial position. IFRIC 11 is effective for pedi® beginning on or after 1 March 2007.

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” — The IASB publisHE®RS 3 and related revisions to IAS 27

“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statementfwilmg the completion in January 2008 of its

project on the acquisition and disposal of subsigsa They are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 but may be adbptgether for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2007.

Restatements

The Group has restated its financial statementariagrror in the calculation of change in net ieser
accruals in the operating activities section of ¢basolidated cash flow statement. See the dethils
the restatement in note 40.
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NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income comprises:
Interest income on assets recorded at amortizéd cos
- interest income on impaired assets
- interest income on unimpaired assets
Interest income on assets at fair value througfitpmoloss
Interest income on investments available-for-sale

Total interest income

Interest income on assets recorded at amortize¢ccooyrises:
Interest on loans to customers
Interest on loans and advances to banks
Interest on investments held to maturity
Amortization of discount on loans

Total interest income on financial assets recordedirtized cost

Interest income on assets at fair value througfitpmoloss:
Interest income on financial assets held-for-trgdin

Total interest income on assets at fair value thnqurgfit or loss
Interest income on investments available for sale
Total interest income

Interest expense comprises:
Interest on liabilities recorded at amortized cost
Interest expense on liabilities at fair value thgloyrofit or loss

Total interest expense

Interest expense on liabilities recorded at amexditizost comprise:
Interest on debt securities issued
Interest on customer accounts
Interest on loans and advances from banks
Preference share dividends
Interest expense on securitization program
Other interest expense

Total interest expense on financial liabilities netam at amortized cost

Net interest income before provision for impairmentlosses on interest

bearing assets
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)

137,299 50,099
170,594 90,017
8,380 7,099

851 35

316,458 147,250
297,608 132,830
9,312 6,994

31 49

942 243

307,893 140,116
8,380 7,099

8,380 7,099

851 35
316,458 147,250
169,528 83,115
169,528 83,115
64,111 40,263
51,542 18,157
43,789 19,609

604 636

7,947 3,744

1,535 706
169,528 83,115
146,930 64,135




ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER PROVISION S

The movements in allowance for impairment lossemtarest bearing assets were as follows:

31 December 2005

(Recovery of provision)/additional provision

recognized
Write-off of assets
Recoveries of assets previously written off
Exchange rate difference

31 December 2006

Additional provision due to acquisition of
LLP IC East Capital

Additional provision recognized

Write-off of assets

Recoveries of assets previously written off

Exchange rate difference

31 December 2007

Loans and Loans to Total
advances to customers
banks
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
1,245 42,162 43,407
(390) 33,277 32,887
- (909) (909)
- 121 121
2 (715) (713)
857 73,936 74,793
- 46 46
459 69,451 69,910
- (724) (724)
- 81 81
(40) (2,427) (2,467)
1,276 140,363 141,639

Total provisions for impairment losses on insurapoavision and guarantees and other off-balance

sheet contingencies comprise:

Insurance provisions

Provisions on guarantees and otherlzfance sheet contingenc

31 December

31 December

2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
3,422 2,703
7,216 4,055
10,638 6,758

The movements in insurance provisions and allowafceimpairment losses on other transactions

were as follows:

31 December 2005

Additional provision recognized

Write-off of assets

Recoveries of assets previously written off
Exchange difference

31 December 2006

Additional provision recognized
Write-off of assets
Recoveries of assets previously written off

31 December 2007

Insurance Other Total
provisions assets
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
2,345 131 2,476
358 25 383
- (39) (39)
- 4 4
- 4) (4)
2,703 117 2,820
889 349 1,238
(170) (187) (357)
- 44 44
3,422 323 3,745
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Insurance provisions comprised:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006

(KZT million) (KZT million)
Property 978 997
Vehicles 785 664
Civil liability for owners of vehicles 241 215
Life insurance 207 -
Civil liability for damage 91 63
Other 1,120 764
Total insurance provisions 3,422 2,703

Other insurance provisions include provisions fmurance of civil liability of passengers, private
lawyers, auditors and audit organizations, ecobilgimedical, air and marine transport and others.

The movements in provision for guarantees and otifebalance sheet contingencies were as
follows:
Guarantees and
other off-balance

sheet

contingencies

(KZT million)
31 December 2005 2,589
Additional provision recognized 1,548
Exchange difference (82)
31 December 2006 4,055
Additional provision recognized 3,186
Exchange difference (25)
31 December 2007 7,216

NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAI R VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities hald4fading 21,627 4,744
Total net gain on financial assets and liabilitiest fair value through
profit or loss 21,627 4,744
Net gain on operations with financial assets aalilities held-for-
trading comprise:
Realized loss on trading operations (61) (280)
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustment 965 1,500
Net gain on operations with derivative financiatmments 20,723 3,524
Total net gain on financial assets and liabilitiest fair value through
profit or loss 21,627 4,744
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NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND PRECIOUS ME TALS OPERATIONS

Dealing, net
Translation differences, net

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE

Fee and commission income:
Cash operations
Documentary operations
Foreign exchange and securities operations
Plastic cards operations
Settlements
Encashment operations
Other

Total fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense:
Plastic cards services
Insurance activity
Foreign exchange and securities operations
Correspondent bank services
NBRK computation center services
Documentary operations
Other

Total fee and commission expense

OTHER INCOME

Insurance income
Negative goodwill
Fines and penalties received

Income from sale of property, equipment and inthleghssets

Other
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
508 4,236
(19,113) 968
(18,605) 5,204
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
6,681 4,896
5,069 3,393
3,892 2,492
3,036 1,890
2,986 2,018
248 170
1,646 2,678
23,558 17,537
1,107 692
787 474
337 131
164 107
97 81
29 48
192 139
2,713 1,672
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
4,134 2,451
1,555 -
288 89
48
894 474
6,919 3,042




10. OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)

Staff cost 15,98( 9,15¢
Depreciation and amortizati 2,519 1,83:
Least 2,40( 1,13¢
Payments to the Individuals’ Deposit Insurance | 1,742 40z
Advertising cost 1,51¢ 1,03¢
Property and equipment maintene 1,392 94t
Value added te 1,20¢ 64C
Communication 707 47€
Business trip expens 524 32¢
Taxes, other than income 424 17€
Bank cards servic 38¢ 207
Consultingand audit servic 382 13€
Security service 32¢ 204
Vehicle maintenant 32t 21C
Training and information servic 24C 177
Stationery and blan 184 92
Charity and sponsorship exper 10z 98
Mail and courier expenst 9C 56
Business develimen expense 62 49
Legal service 30 20
Cash collection expens 26 15
Subscription expens 19 10
Penalties and fini 11 1,02¢
Other material 77 62
Other expens: 528 56€
31,20( 19,052

11. INCOME TAX

The Group provides for taxes based on the tax atsauaintained and prepared in accordance with
the tax regulations of countries where the Groupitmsubsidiaries operate and which may diffemfro
IFRS.

The Group is subject to certain permanent tax wiffees due to non-tax deductibility of certain
expenses and a tax free regime for certain income.

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of terapodifferences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting pesps and the amounts used for tax purposes. Temppora
differences as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 retatly to different methods of income and
expense recognition as well as to recorded valfiesrtain assets.
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Tax effect of temporary differences as at 31 Deaam2007 and 2006:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT millions) (KZT million)

Deferred income tax assets:

Bonuses accrued 706 325
Unamortized commission for loans issued - 191
Provision for unearned premium, net of reinsurance - 123
Unrealized revaluation of securities - 863
Unrealized revaluation of investments in associates 1,462 10
Other assets 136 34

Total deferred income tax assets 2,304 1,546

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Allowance for losses on loans and advances to bamitsustomers 20,147 13,662
Unrealized gain on trading securities and derigtiv 7,714 1,772
Property and equipment, accrued depreciation 2,795 1,583
Investments in associates 946 201
Provision on guarantees and letters of credit 1,198 1,167
Other liabilities - 11
Total deferred income tax liabilities 32,800 18,396
Net deferred income tdiabilities 30,496 16,850

Relationships between tax expenses and accourirfigy for the years ended 31 December 2007 and
2006 are explained as follows:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Profit before income tax 73,655 40,361
Tax at the statutory tax rate (30%) 22,097 12,108
Tax effect of permanent differences:
Tax exempt interest income on mortgage loans amaial leasing (3,406) (1,954)
Tax exempt interest income and other related incom&tate and
quoted securities listed with “A” and “B” ratings 1,184) (705)
Other tax exempt income (340) 213
Provisions on loans to related parties and findhe#sing 155 477
Non deductible interest expense 308 974
Dividends on preferred shares 181 191
Other non deductible expenditures 498 1,016
Tax effect on income of subsidiaries taxed at déffierates (681) (553)
Income tax expense net of permanent differences 6287, 11,767
Decrease of deferred tax expense (727) (621)
(Decrease)/increase of income tax expense on d#iolas for prior
periods (997) 1,454
Income tax expense 15,904 12,600
Current income tax expense 3,795 4,447
Deferred income tax expense 12,109 8,153
Income tax expense 15,904 12,600
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12.

13.

Deferred income tax liabilities

1 January

Decrease in property and equipment revaluatiormrvese
Deferred income tax expense

Net deferred income tax liabilities

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006

(KZT million) (KZT million)
16,851 8,290
1,536 407
12,109 8,153
30,496 16,850

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calcutatetividing the net income for the year attribuéab

to equity holders of the parent by the weightedragye number of participating shares outstanding

during the year.

As described in note 31, dividend payments pemargi shares cannot exceed the dividends per share
on preference shares for the same period. Theref@teprofit for the period is allocated to the
ordinary shares and the preference shares in amuoedwith their legal and contractual dividend

rights to participate in undistributed earnings:

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Net profit for the year attributable to equity hetd of the parent

Less: additional dividends that would be paid ohdidtribution of
profit to the preferred shareholders

Net profit for the year attributable to ordinarasbholders

Weighted average number of ordinary shéoedasic and
diluted earnings per share

Earnings per share— basic and diluted (tenge)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
55,963 25,985
(9,495) (5,359)
46,468 20,626
574,828,600 428,947,990
80.85 48.08

CASH AND BALANCES WITH NATIONAL (CENTRAL) BANKS

Cash on hand
Balances with the national (central) banks
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31 December

31 December

2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
41,082 31,100
127,066 177,905
168,148 209,005




14.

15.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes ofahsotidated statement of cash flows are comprised
of the following:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006

(KZT million) (KZT million)

Cash and balances with national (central) banks 8,118 209,005
Loans and advances to banks in Organisation for EemnGo-operation:

and Development (“OECD”) countries (Note 39) 139,042 41,923
Less minimum reserve deposit with the NBRK (160,217) (189,631)
Less minimum reserve deposit with the CBR (2,430) (1,712)
Less minimum reserve deposit with the NBKR (197) (182)
144,346 59,403

The balances with the Central Bank of Russian Feier (“CBR”) as at 31 December 2007 include
KZT 5,246 million (2006: KZT 4,660 million), of whh KZT 2,430 million
(2006: KZT 1,712 million) represents the obligatomnimum reserve deposits required by the CBR.
The Group is required to maintain the reserve lzalat the CBR at all times.

The balances with the National Bank of the Repubfiiazakhstan (“NBRK") as at 31 December
2007 include KZT 121,476 million (2006: 172,564 Iroih) and cash on hand of KZT 38,741 million
(2006: KZT 17,067 million), totaling KZT 160,217 idn (2006: KZT 189,631 million), which
represent the minimum reserve deposits requiretiddWBRK.

The balances with the National Bank of the KyrgygpBblic of (‘“NBKR") as at 31 December 2007
include KZT 344 million (2006: KZT 681 million), ofwhich KZT 197 million
(2006: KZT 182 million) represents the minimum mygsedeposits required by the NBKR at all times.

PRECIOUS METALS

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Precious metals - 807
- 807

The precious metals balance held by the Groupelstlely to gold bullion. As at 3 January 2007,
the Bank disposed of all its holdings of precioletats.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LO SS

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Debt securities 130,271 309,405
Equity investments 15,647 6,126
Derivative financial instruments 42,858 7,087
188,776 322,618

The financial assets at fair value through profitlass relate entirely to financial assets held for
trading.
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31 December

31 December

2007 2006
Nominal Amount Nominal Amount
interest rate % interest rate
% (KZT million) % (KZT million)
Debt securities:
Bonds of international financial
organizations 1.56-20.09% 87,336 1.10-17.5% 217,362
Bonds of Kazakhsni companie 4.90-12.40% 22,684  8.00-11.30% 18,230
Bonds of Russian investment fur - 4,273 - -
Bonds of Kazakhstani bar 6.00-12.00% 4,151  6.80-10.90% 14,126
Bonds of Russian compan 7.28-13.80% 4,030 7.95-13.80% 4,808
Eurobonds of Kazakhstaninks 7.75-8.13% 2,900 7.88-9.00% 5,584
Shor-term NBRK note 4.50% 1,845 5.04% 34,895
State treasury bonds of the Ministry of
Finance o Republic of Kazakhst: 3.78-6.68% 926 3.78-6.68% 998
Bonds o Russian banl 7.3£-8.25% 702 7.2(-8.25% 51z
Bonds of local executive bodies of the
Russian Federation 7.75-9.20% 607  7.20-10.90% 1,496
Bonds of federal loan of the Ministry of
Finance of the Russian Federation 9.00-10.00% 343  6.30-10.00% 1,392
Eurobonds of OECD countri 4.75% 253 3.60% 8,233
Bonds of Atyrau local executive bodies  8.50% 220 8.50% 240
Eurobonds of the Ministry of Finance
of the Republic of Kazakhstan - - 11.13% 1,052
Bonds of Development Bank of
Kazakhsta - - 6.50-7.125% 476
130,271 309,405
Ownership 31 December Ownership 31 December
share 2007 share 2006
% (KZT million) % (KZT million)
Equity investments:
0.00001%-
Shares of Russian companies 19.559% 7,565 0.0001%-0.12% 74
GDR of Kazakhstani companies 0.247% 3,771 0.10% 1,148
ADR of Kazakhstani companies 0.654% 2,496 0.57% 2,342
Shares of Kazakhstani companies  0.007%-0.282% 701 0.016%-0.391% 2,498
GDR of Russian banks 0.07% 652 - -
Shares of Kazakhstani banks 0.0007%-0.043% 363 0.003%-0.013% 64
GDR of Kazakhstani banks 0.01% 80 - -
Shares of Russian banks 0.00001% 19 - -
15,647 6,126

As at 31 December 2007, financial assets at fdirevitnrough profit or loss included accrued interes
income on debt securities of KZT 1,506 million (BOBZT 1,816 million).

As at 31 December 2007, financial assets at fdirevéhrough profit or loss included short term-isote
NBRK notes, bonds of federal loan of the MinistdyFonance of the Russian Federation, bonds of
Kazakhstani and Russian companies pledged underctegse agreements with other banks and
customers with fair value of KZT 82,147 million (& KZT 262,008 million). As at 31 December
2007 all of the repurchase agreements are to thedsby February 2008 (2006: January 2007).
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16.

Derivative financial
instruments

Foreign exchange
contracts

Foreign exchange
swap

Forward contrac

Interest rate swi

Spo

Securities
purchase/sale
contracts

Securities swa|

Forward contrac

Gold purchase/sale
contracts
Spot on gol

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

Nominal Net fair value Nominal Net fair value
value (KZT million) value (KZT million)
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
381,001 25,724 (2,145) 88,919 4,072 (865)
64,65: 2,10¢ (381, 72,40 72¢ (129
82,74( 14,98" (5,133 68,840 2,28¢ (2,544
74,99¢ 19 (25) 11,97; 3 (11)
592 23 (46) - -
- - 61C - (4)
- - 807 - (1)
42,858 (7,730) 7,087 (3,554)

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS

31 December

Recorded as loans and receivables:

Loans and advances to banks
Correspondent accounts with other banks
Loans under reverse repurchase agreements

31 December

Less allowance for impairment losses

2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)

173,759 122,266

39,661 30,277
679 45,505

214,099 198,048
(1,276) (857)

212,823 197,191

Movements in allowances for impairment losses @md$oand advances to banks for the years ended
31 December 2007 and 2006 are disclosed in Note 5.

As at 31 December

2007,

KZT 1,327 million (2006: KZT 860 million).

loans and advances to bamélsided accrued

interest of

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Group hadoansland advances to the banks, which
individually exceeded 10% of the Group’s equity. #&s31 December 2007, maximum exposure on
individual bank amounted to KZT 32,091 million (B)XZT 25,505 million).
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17.

The fair value of collateral and carrying valueladns under reverse repurchase agreements as at

31 December 2007 and 2006 comprised:

31 December

31 December

2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Fair value of Carrying Fair value of Carrying
collateral value of collateral value of
Shares of Russian companies 756 668 - -
Bonds of the Ministry of Finance
of the Republic of Kazakhstan 12 11 4,763 4,339
Bonds of Kazakhstani companies - - 6,127 5,042
Notes of the NBRK - - 26,318 25,010
Bonds of Kazakhstani banks - - 8,667 7,100
Shares of Kazakhstani companies - - 4,940 3,254
Shares of Kazakhstani banks - - 817 760
768 679 51,632 45,505

As at 31 December 2007, a guarantee deposit

in ahmunt of KZT 2,406 million

(2006: KZT 2,540 million) placed in JP Morgan Chd&ank London was included in loans and

advances to banks as collateral for letters oficred

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

Recorded as loans and receivables:

Originated loans

Net investments in finance lease

Loans under reverse repurchase agreements

Less allowance for impairment losses

31 December 31 December

2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
2,480,059 1,713,183
6,090 4,573
20,549 35,020
2,506,698 1,752,776
(140,363) (73,936)

2,366,335 1,678,840

As at 31 December 2007, accrued interest incomkided in loans to customers amounted to

KZT 66,827 million (2006: KZT 33,106 million).

Movements in allowances for impairment losses oangoto customers for the years ended

31 December 2007 and 2006 are disclosed in Note 5.
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The table below summarizes the amount of loansreddoy type of collateral, rather than the fair
value of the collateral itself:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Analysis by type of collateral:
Loans collateralized by real estate 1,039,685 429,701
Loans collateralized by guarantees of enterprises 6,004 219,410
Loans collateralized by shares of the banks and otivapanies 226,603 199,680
Loans collateralized by mixed types of collateral 9,280 168,269
Loans collateralized by equipment 209,168 127,966
Loans with collateral under the registration prodessperty, land,
shares, guarantees, etc.) 152,707 160,300
Loans collateralized by accounts receivable 86,872 106,318
Loans collateralized by cash or Kazakhstani Govemimearantees 80,232 51,414
Loans collateralized by inventories 41,014 69,070
Loans collateralized by guarantees of financialtutsbns 8,031 46,104
Loans collateralized by securities 3,675 6,183
Unsecured loans 132,364 94,425
2,366,335 1,678,840

Mixed collateral consists of multiple types of eddiral including real estate, guarantees and
inventories. Loans are classified as being cobéiterd by mixed collateral where it is impractital
split this collateral into the categories disclosbove.

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Analysis by sector:
Individuals 452,330 261,708
Trade 442,181 310,842
Housing construction 246,546 183,380
Commercial real estate construction 228,165 201,298
Real estate 165,825 103,101
Hotel business 133,635 47,260
Investments and finance 122,744 87,724
Transport and communication 106,576 43,342
Energy 66,179 46,302
Food industry 62,661 53,069
Agriculture 52,906 38,931
Machinery construction 43,935 23,134
Industrial and other construction 40,115 68,904
Production of construction materials 31,468 34,145
Mining and metallurgy 11,577 23,708
Culture and art 4,945 568
Medicine 4,239 2,467
Other 150,308 148,957
2,366,335 1,678,840
Loans to individuals comprise the following prodsict
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Mortgage loans 247,478 148,346
Consumer loans 133,108 74,987
Car loans 19,422 15,672
Other 52,322 22,703
452,330 261,708
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As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Group graluads to the borrowers, shown below,

respectively, which individually exceeded 10% of iGroup’s equity. Although loans to borrowers

disclosed in 2006 may continue to be outstandir2Pdi7, only those borrowers which exceed 10% of
equity are disclosed below.

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
LLP Ken-Sary 69,714 -
Alibi Holding 48,327 34,823
Visor Solution Holding 43,122 -
Jeilan Limited Holding - 35,641
KUAT Holding - 34,524
Mayberry Financial Services S.A. - 33,194
Ordabasy Corporation - 33,580
161,163 171,762

As at 31 December 2007 a significant part of |0@in8.42%) (2006: 70.34%) of the total portfolio) is
granted to companies operating on the territoryhef Republic of Kazakhstan, which represents a
significant geographical concentration.

The fair value of collateral and carrying valuelodns under reverse repurchase agreements as at
31 December 2007, comprised:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Fair value Carrying Fair value Carrying
of collateral value of loans of collateral value of loans
Shares of Kazakhstani companies 15,998 15,081 6,686 5,803
Bonds of Kazakhstani companies 2,534 2,871 3,000 3,112
Bonds of Kazakhstani banks 669 805 1,362 1,914
Shares of Russian banks 499 480 958 875
Shares of Kazakhstani banks 419 676 521 585
Shares of Kazakhstani companies 614 636 30,640 21,574
Bonds of Russian companies - - 1,318 1,157
Total securities purchased under
reverse repurchase agreements 20,733 20,549 44,485 35,020

The components of net investment in finance leassd 81 December 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006

(KZT million) (KZT million)
Minimum lease payments 8,037 5,606
Less: unearned finance income (1,947) (1,033)
Net investment in finance lease 6,090 4,573
Current portion 1,681 2,004
Long-term portion 4,409 2,569
Net investment in finance lease 6,090 4573
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The value of future minimum lease payments receivenh the customer under finance lease as of
31 December 2007 and 2006 comprised:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Not later than one ye 2,26¢ 2,36¢
From one year to five yes 5,18¢ 3,17¢
More than 5 yea 58¢ 62
Total value of future minimum lease payme 8,031 5,60¢
18. INVESTMENTS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
Nominal Amount Nominal Amount
interest rate interest rate
% (KZT million) % (KZT million)
Debt securities:
Bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Republic
of Kazakhstan 3.75-11.08% 1,400 3.75-6.68% 442
Bonds of Small Business Development Fund 9.00% 332 9.00% 334
Bonds of Kazexportastyk Holding 11.00% 306 9.90-10.20% 304
Bonds of Kazakhstan Mortgage Company 7.90-12.20% 245 6.90-8.89% 271
Bonds of TuranAlem Bank 12.00% 187 10.50% 198
Bonds of Astana-Finance 11.90% 117 11.20% 121
Bonds of Karazhanbasmunai 11.20% 117 10.50% 124
Bonds of KazTransCom 8.00% 111 8.00% 124
Bonds of Kazakhaltyn 9.80% 114 10.50% 120
Bonds of ATF Bank 8.50% 96 8.50-9.00% 106
Bonds of CenterCredit Bank 9.00-9.50% 7 9.00% 7
Short-term notes of NBRK 3.03% 2 1.95% 355
Bonds of Khimfarm - - 10.00% 120
3,034 2,626

Ownership 31 December  Ownership 31 December

share 2007 share 2006
% (KZT million) % (KZT million)
Equity securities:
Kazakhstan Stock Exchange 1.33% 2 1.33% 2
2 2
Total investments available-for-sale 3,036 2,628

As at 31 December 2007 interest income on debtrisesu amounting to KZT 168 million
(2006: KZT 39 million), was accrued and includedrimestments available-for-sale.
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19.

20.

21.

INVESTMENTS HELD TO MATURITY

31 December

31 December

2007 2006
Nominal Amount Nominal Amount
interestrate  (KZT million) interest rate (KZT million)
% %
Debt securities:
Bonds of CenterCredit Bank 8.50-10.00% 117 8.50-9.00% 117
Bonds of Halyk Bank 7.30-7.75% 109 7.75% 109
Bonds of ATF Bank 8.50-9.80% 91 8.50% 92
Bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the
Kyrgyz Republic 5.24-7.07% 58  6.95% 39
375 357
As at 31 December 2007 interest income on debt risiesu amounting to KZT 5 million

(2006: KZT 6 million), was accrued and includedrmestments available-for-sale.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The movements of investments in associates areunatd for in the consolidated financial

statements using the equity method and comprise:

2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
1 January 1,755 425
Purchase cost 134 200
Share of results of associates 1,333 1,130
31 December 3,222 1,755

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising as a result of business acquisitielates to expected income from business
expansion from the distribution of products on nmarkets, raising long-term funds and expected

combined activity.

Goodwill arising as a result of a business acdarsiis distributed to the companies that generash c

flows.

Companies that generate cash flows 31 December

31 December

2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
JSC Grantum APF 1,281 1,281
JSC OCOPAIM Grantum Asset Management 1,124 1,124
2,405 2,405

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 there was no esadémat the goodwill that arose on the
acquisition of JSC Grantum APF and JSC OCOPAIM @Gran Asset Management has been

impaired.
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Based on the results of internal estimation, thkievaof the shares of JSC Grathum APF and
JSC OCOPAIM Grantum Asset Management increased fr@racquisition dates and management
believe there is no impairment to goodwill. Goollwias determined by applying a discounted future
cash flow analysis. Discount rates of 16.45% (3tdpeber 2007) and 14% (31 December 2006)
were applied for future cash flows based on thegbtetl amounts. The management of the Group

used the following assumptions for future cash fiow

» Economic development of the Republic of Kazakhstan;

» Stable legislation in relation to obligatory pemsipayments and as a result the continued

growth of the pension system;
» Stable customer base (high salary customers);
» Favourable population indicators ( expanding youmggpulation); and
» Possibility to sell several by-products.

22. PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Buildings Furniture and Intangible Construction

and other equipment assets in

real estate progress
(KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)

At primary/revalued cost

Other
equipment

Total

(KZT million)  (KZT million)

31 December 2005 3,983 7,827 1,184 38 712 13,744
Additions 1,564 3,220 345 2,081 505 7,715
Revaluation increase 1,315 - - - - 1,315
Disposals (44) (271) 1) - (144) (460)
Net foreign currency exchange

differences - (15) 1 - 28 14
31 December 2006 6,818 10,761 1,529 2,119 1,101 3282,
Additions 2,162 5,492 1,630 6,116 861 16,261
Revaluation increase 5,245 - - - - 5,245
Disposals (233) (658) (11) - (460) (1,362)
Net foreign currency exchange

differences 6 121 1 - 105 233
31 December 2007 13,998 15,716 3,149 8,235 1,607 ,7082
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2005 59 4,026 706 291 5,082
Charge for the year 70 1,432 224 - 107 1,833
Written off upon revaluation - 1 - - - 1
Written off upon disposal (33) (145) 1) - (103) (282)
Net foreign currency exchange

differences 1 4 1 - 7 13
31 DecembeR006 97 5,318 930 - 302 6,647
Charge for the year 131 1,784 324 - 280 2,519
Written off upon disposal (94) (476) (10) - (181) (761)
Net foreign currency exchange

differences - 29 1 - 11 41
31 December 2007 134 6,655 1,245 412 8,446
Net book value
31 December 2007 13,864 9,061 1,904 8,235 1,195 2584,
31 December 2006 6,721 5,443 599 2,119 799 15,681
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23.

24.

As at 31 December 2007 property, equipment anagiltée assets of the Group included completely
depreciated and amortized assets on initial costouatng to KZT 3,497 million
(2006: KZT 2,008 million), of which KZT 3,384 mitih pertain to the Bank
(2006: KZT 1,947 million).

Buildings and other real estate are revalued oregular cyclical basis, the last valuation was
conducted on 30 June 2007 (2006: 16 June 2006). vBhgation was conducted by a local

independent appraisal company. The methods of tiatuaised include: the cost approach, the
benchmark (comparative) approach, the profit metwod comparison of the property to observable
prices in an active market. These prices are obdathrough publications and current market data,
and are adjusted based on the experience of therval

The carrying value of the buildings as at 31 DecamB®007 amounted to KZT 13,319 million
(2006: KZT 6,356 million). If the buildings were@munted for at historical cost restated according t
inflation indices less accumulated depreciation mmghirment losses, their carrying value would be
KZT 2,993 million (2006: KZT 1,614 million).

Intangible assets include software, patents aetdies.

OTHER ASSETS
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Prepayments and other debtors 9,970 4,968
Prepaid expenses 3,992 3,232
Tax settlements, other than income tax 2,632 86
Insurance agreement accounts receivable 1,196 1,220
Income tax receivable 386 1,180
18,176 10,686
Less allowance for impairment losses (323) (117)
17,853 10,569

Movements in allowances for impairment losses fieryears ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 are
disclosed in Note 5.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Derivative financial instruments 7,730 3,554
7,730 3,554

Derivative financial instruments are disclosed wtdN15. Derivative financial instruments are used b
the Group for trading purposes and to provide esvadedges against exposures to fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest r&kisough the above-mentioned hedges may be
effective from an economic standpoint, they do negeive hedge accounting treatment and as such,
changes in the market value of these instrumeetse@morded in the consolidated income statement
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25. LOANS AND ADVANCES FROM BANKS

31 December

31 December

2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Recorded at amortized cos
Correspondent accounts of other banks 72,028 46,273
Correspondent accounts of organizations that ssxtain types of
banking operations 5 -
Loans from banks and financial institutions, inchgli
Syndicated loan from a group of banks withturity of February
2008 and interest rate of 5.51% 54,838 107,377
Syndicated loan from a group of banks with matwitpecember
2007 and interest rate of 5.813% - 88,481
Syndicated loan from a group of banks with matusiteptember
2008 and interest rate of 5.815% 72,834 -
Syndicated loan from a group of banks witaturity of December
2008 and interest rate of 6.26% 33,147 61,044
Syndicated loan from a group of banks witaturity of December
2008 and interest rate of 5.43% 13,235 -
Syndicated loan from a group of banks with matusitipecember
2009 and interest rate of 6.14% 36,255 37,809
Loan with maturity of September 2008 4,143 4,933
Loan with maturity of December 2014 40,138 2,371
Loans with other banks and financial establishments 284,267 276,779
Deposits with banks 34,780 8,382
Loans under repurchase agreements 77,761 250,852
723,431 884,301

As at 31 December 2007 loans and advances fromsbertkuded accrued interest expenses of
KZT 5,272 million (2006: KZT 3,391 million).

As at 31 December 2007 loans with other banks arahéial institutions for KZT 247,667 million
(87.00% of total loans with other banks and finahaestablishments) (31 December 2006:
KZT 262,938 million or 95.00% of total loans withther banks and financial establishments)
consisted of 45 (2006: 34) banks and financialtin#ns of such countries as Russia, Great Brjtain
the Netherlands, Czech Republic, the USA, SwitnerlakKuwait, Austria, Luxemburg, Korea,
Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Germany, Canada, BelgiymairSand Singapore. Maturities of these loans
range from 3 days to 101 months (2006: 1 month7an@nths). Interest rates on loans with other
banks and financial establishments varied from%.88 10.16% (2006: from 0.5% to 10.412%).

As at 31 December 2007 included in loans and adsnto banks are loans under repurchase

agreements of KZT 77,761 million (2006: KZT 250,85#lion) with maturities in February 2008
(2006: January 2007).
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The fair value of collateral and carrying value lolans under repurchase agreements as at
31 December 2007 and 2006 are presented as follows:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Fair value of Carrying Fair value of Carrying
collateral value of loans collateral value of loans
Bonds of international financial
establishments 75,749 72,501 208,837 204,549
Bonds of Russian companies 2,064 1,489 - -
Bonds of Kazakhstani companies 1,750 1,501 13,151 10,952
Notes of the National Bank of the
Republic of Kazakhstan 843 802 24,944 24,942
Bonds of the Ministry of Finance of
the Republic of Kazakhstan 776 702 - -
Bonds of local executive bodies of
the Russian Federation 504 547 - -
Bonds of Russian banks 249 219 - -
Eurobonds of countries, members
OECD - - 976 8,408
Bonds of Kazakhstani banks - - 2,485 2,001
81,935 77,761 257,363 250,852

During 2007 the Group simultaneously placed witll aeceived short-term funds from banks in
different currencies for total amount of KZT 30128illion (2006: KZT 448,375 million).

CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Recorded at amortized cost:
Loans and time deposits 718,761 425,822
Demand deposits 176,121 257,600
Loans under repurchase agreements 201 4,384
895,083 687,806

As at 31 December 2007 customer accounts includedied interest expense of KZT 16,516 million
(2006: KZT 7,466 million).

As at 31 December 2007 customer accounts were giedg a guarantee for issued letters of credit

and other transactions relating to contingent ligds of KZT 2,750 million
(2006: KZT 2,542 million).
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As at 31 December 2007 the customer accounts of K33b,853 million or 37.52%
(2006: KZT 250,184 million or 36.37%), were due 0 customers, which represents significant
concentration.

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Analysis by sector:
Individuals 309,679 196,072
Chemical and petrochemical industry 168,778 167,466
Investments and finance 146,763 52,076
Transport and communication 56,345 30,209
Trade 39,867 52,364
Construction 36,592 75,750
Individual services 30,752 36,608
Education 27,261 2,170
Agriculture 25,766 20,232
Distribution of electricity, gas and water 16,683 3R
Mining and metallurgy 8,402 7,724
Health care 6,830 965
Food industry 2,444 1,568
Real estate 1,704 11,266
Light industry 1,077 3,592
Machinery construction 904 689
Hotel business 694 4,972
Culture and art 612 1,031
Public organizations and unions 592 680
Energy 1 1
Other 13,337 19,019
895,083 687,806

As at 31 December 2007 customer accounts incluoiasl under repurchase agreements amounting
to KZT 201 million (2006: KZT 4,384 million).

The fair value of collateral and carrying value lolans under repurchase agreements as at
31 December 2007 and 2006 are presented as follows:

31 December 31 December
2007 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Fair value Carrying Fair value Carrying
of collateral value of of collateral value of
loans loans
Bonds of Kazakh companies 212 201 - -
Bonds of Russian companies - - 2,477 2,304
Shares of Russian companies - - 1,551 1,515
Bonds of local executive bodies of the Russian
Federation - - 617 565
Total securities sold under repurchase
agreements 212 201 4,645 4,384
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27. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Currency Maturity Annual

31 December

31 December

date  coupon rate 2007 2006
% (KZT million) (KZT million)
Recorded at amortized cost:
Eurobonds of Kazkommerts
International B.V.:

Issued in May 2007 with zero

coupon usSD May 2008 - 30,075 -
Issued in July 2007 at the price of

100% JPY July 2009  2.212% 26,775 -
Tranche A issued in November November

2004 at the price of 98.967% USD 2009 7.000% 40,949 42,786
Issued in March, 2006 at the price

of 99.993% EUR March 2011 5.125% 53,151 48,465
Issued in February 2007 at the February

price of 99.962% GBP 2012 7.625% 84,049 -
Issued in April 2003 at the price

of 97.548% USD  April 2013 8.500% 41,420 43,729
Issued in April 2004 at the price

of 99.15% USD  April 2014 7.875% 47,337 50,165
Issued in November 2005 at the November

price of 98.32% usD 2015 8.000% 60,150 63,246
Issued in November 2006 at the November

price of 98.282% UsD 2016 7.500% 60,150 63,500
Issued in February 2007 at the February

price of 99.277% EUR 2017 6.875% 132,877 -

Tranche A, issued in May 2002

and placed at the price of

99.043% uUsD May 2007 10.125% - 17,594
Tranche B, issued in November

2002 and placed at the price of

107.00% uUsD May 2007 10.125% - 6,350
February
Other Eurobonds of Kazkomme SGD and2009 — Apil  4.250%-
International B.V. uUsD 2013 12.850% 59,450 46,388
636,383 382,223
Including /(less):
Discount on debt securities issued (6,289) (5,023)
Accrued interest on debt securities
issued 19,897 6,385
Total issued Eurobonds of
Kazkommerts International B.V. 649,991 383,585
Issued bonds of the Bank - 3,036
Accrued expenses on issued bonds of
the Bank - 97
Issued promissory notes of January
LLP Moscommertsbank at the price 2008 — June 3.000%-
of 88.00-100.00% 2013 12.110% 78,370 36,982

Accrued interest expense on issued
promissory notes of

LLP Moscommertsbank 1,198 462
Issued bonds of Moscow Stars B.V December 6.870%-
the price of 99.00% 2034 10.370% 10,099 -
Accrued interest on bonds of Mosc
Stars B.V. 30 -
739,688 424,162

As at 31 December 2007 accrued interest expenseligled in debt securities issued amounting to
KZT 21,125 million (2006: KZT 6,944 million).
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Eurobonds were issued by Kazkommerts Internati@¥®l, a subsidiary of the Bank, and were
guaranteed by the Bank. For Eurobonds with a ntgtafiApril 2013, the coupon is paid on 16 April
and 16 October, for Eurobonds with a maturity ofriA@014, the coupon is paid on 7 April and
7 October, for Eurobonds with a maturity of NovemB609, the coupon is paid on 3 May and
3 November, for Eurobonds with a maturity of NovemR015, the coupon is paid on 3 May and
3 November, for Eurobonds with a maturity of Ma@Bl1, the coupon is paid on 23 March, for
Eurobonds with a maturity of November 2016, thepmouis paid on 29 May and 29 November, for
Eurobonds with a maturity of February 2017, thepmouis paid on 13 February, for Eurobonds with
a maturity of February 2012, the coupon is paidl8nFebruary, for Eurobonds with a maturity of
May 2008, the coupon is paid on 16 May, for Euratsowith a maturity of July 2009, the coupon is
paid on 8 January, 8 April, 8 July and 8 Octobed dor Eurobonds with a maturity of
December 2012, the coupon is paid on 18 June amkt8mber.

On 18 July 2007, Eurobonds were issued by Moscarms3R.V. with a maturity of December 2034,
the first interest payment was due on 16 Augus720@ subsequent interest is to be paid on tfe 15
of each month. Moscow Stars BV is the special psepeehicle created for securitization of mortgage
loans, and it is consolidated into the financiatement of MKB in accordance with SIC 12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”.

The Group is obligated to comply with financial eoants in relation to the debt securities disclosed
above. These covenants include stipulated capatids; debt to equity ratios and various other
financial performance ratios. The Group has noatined any of these covenants in the years ending
31 December 2007 and 2006.

28. OTHER BORROWED FUNDS
Currency Maturity Interest rate 31 December Interestrate 31 December
% 2007 % 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)

Kazkommerts DPR Company usb March 2017  6.06 — 7.52% 113,581 6.59 — 7.95% 56,792
Funding by the Small Business

Development Fund KZT December 2014 11.10% 12,264 - -
Moore's Creek KZT February 2009 7.56% 6,588 - -
DEG-Deutsche Investitions MBH uUsb January 2014  6.24 — 8.64% 6,20.B8 — 8.86% 6,559
Societe Generale Financial Corp USD September 20175.30 — 7.66% 5,593 - -
NLB InterFinanz AG USD August 2010 8.19% 1,858 - -
Private Export Funding Corporation uUsD March 2011  5.03 - 5.65% 1,66065 — 5.97% 1,160
Funding of agricultural equipment

purchasing by Export Development

Canada usbD March 2011 5.41% 608.64 — 6.04% 990
Deere Credit UsD May 2012 5.20 - 5.28% 25175 - 5.8% 480
Intesa Soditic Trade Finance LTD UsD August 2009 7.28% 249 6.86% 2,545

Funding by the Ministry of Finance tie
Republic of Kazakhstan and by the

Ministry of Kyrgyz Republic KZT September 2011 0.50% 850 — 5.81% 156
Funding by Ministry of Finance of
Kyrgyz Republic UsD July 2015 1.50% 2 1.50% 2

Funding by the Ministry of Finance of t
Republic of Kazakhstan and by the

Ministry of Kyrgyz Republic EUR - - - 5.00% 104
Funding of agricultural equipment
purchasing by Atlantik Forfaiting AG  USD - - - 9.53% 26

148,934 68,814

As at 31 December 2007 accrued interest expeng& 6f620 million (2006: KZT 255 million) is
included in other borrowed funds.
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On 8 December 2005, the Bank launched the inaudutate flow securitization of diversified
payment rights for USD 300 million with floating tevest rate and three year grace period on
repayment of principal debt in the framework of theire payment inflow securitization program and
circulation period of 7 years. The transaction istrae-sale securitization of the Bank’s
dollar-denominated present and future diversifieggrpent rights (SWIFT USD MT100 series) to
Kazkommerts DPR Company (special purpose vehidated in the Cayman Islands). Kazkommerts
DPR Company is operated by Maples Finance Limitgdch is incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
Allocation was made in three series 2005A in theam of USD 200 million, 2005B and 2005C in
the amount of USD 50 million each. Two latter tha@s were allocated by private offering, and Series
2005A was insured by the specialized financial canypAMBAC, the rate of which amounted to
3-month LIBOR plus 0.29%.

On 7 June, 2006 the Bank, in the framework of thterE payment inflow securitization program,
allocated additional series of bonds 2006A and BO@@sured by the specialized financial companies
AMBAC and FGIC. The sum of the given bonds amounitedSD 100 million each, with a maturity
of 7 years, a three year grace period of the gralaebt and an interest rate of 3-month LIBOR plus
0.25 %.

On 12 April 2007, the Bank, in the framework of faéure a payment inflow securitization program,
allocated three additional series of bonds: 2007Ahe amount of USD 150 million, 2007B in the
amount of USD 250 million and 20Q7in the amount of USD 100 million. The bonds wessuied
with a maturity of 10 years, a three year graceopeof the principal debt and floating interestesat
The insurers of the bonds issue are specializezhdial companies FGIC (2007A series), MBIA
(2007B series) and ADB (2007C series). The interast on each series is 3-month LIBOR plus the
following spreads: 2007A plus 0.20%, 2007B plusO@i2and 2007C plus 0.16%. The bonds are
issued through Kazkommerts DPR Company.

The Group is not liable for any downgrades in tihedit rating of the insurers and there are no

requirements for the Group to early repay the nigsged in case of further downgrades of the
insurers or the notes itself.

OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December
2007 2006

(KZT million) (KZT million)
Taxes payable, other than income tax 7,276 2,992
Payable to employees 2,851 1,576
Accounts payable on re-insurers 682 616
Advances received 62 144
Other 2,974 3,259
13,845 8,587
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30.

31.

SUBORDINATED DEBT

Currency  Maturity Interest 31 December 31 December
date rate 2007 2006
(year) % (KZT million) (KZT million)
Indexed subordinated bor KZT 200¢ 7.C0% 3,31¢ 3,47¢
Subordinated debt of Citigroup
GMD AG & Co UsD 2014 8.19% 12,260 12,943
Subordinated debt of Kazkommerts
Finance Il B.V. usbD 2016 9.64% 24,864 26,239
Subordinated bonds KZT 2017 7.50% 20,411 12,639
Subordinated debt of Kazkommerts
Finance Il B.V. usbD 2017 9.54% 30,035 -
Debt component of preference
shares KZT - - 5,221 5,758
Perpetual debt of Kazkommerts
Finance Il B.V. UsD - 9.25% 12,060 12,715
International subordinated bor usD - 2,537
Subordinated bonds usbD 2007 5.50% - 42
Subordinated bonds of MKB usbD 2016 10.00% - 2,570
108,166 78,922

In the event of bankruptcy or liquidation of thenBarepayment of this debt is subordinate to the
repayments of the Bank’s liabilities to all otheeditors.

As at 31 December 2007 accrued interest expensdsded in subordinated debt amounted to
KZT 1,793 million (2006: KZT 1,677 million).

SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31 December 2007 the Group’s share capitapcsed the following:

Authorized Authorized but Repurchased Issued
share capital not issued share capital share capital
share capital
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
Ordinary shares 7,750 (2,000) (8] 5,749
Preferred shares 1,250 - (1) 1,249
9,000 (2,000) (2) 6,998

During 2007, 200,000,000 ordinary shares with a inahmvalue of KZT 10 and total amount of
KZT 2,000 million were authorized for issue by thleareholders. As at 31 December 2007, these
shares remain unpaid.

As at 31 December 2006 the Group’s share capitapcsed the following:

Authorized Authorized but Repurchased Issued
share capital not issued share capital share capital
share capital
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
Ordinary shares 5,750 Q) D) 5,748
Preferred shares 1,250 - (3) 1,247
7,000 (1) (4) 6,995
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The preference shares have a nominal value of KZ&rd carry no voting rights, unless preference
dividends are not paid, but rank ahead of the arglishares in the event of liquidation of the Bank.
The annual dividend is determined by the preferaheees issuance rules in the amount of USD 0.04
per share. According to Kazakhstan legislation omtJStock Companies, additional dividend
payments on the preference shares cannot be kssha dividends paid on common shares. These
shares are not redeemable.

During 2007, dividends declared on preference shamgounted to KZT 604 million (2006: KZT 636
million). In 2007 and 2006 dividends on ordinanasds of the Bank have not been declared.

In 2006, the Group increased the nominal valugsoshare capital by KZT 2,000 million, through the
following:

a) on 21 July 2006, the Bank completed the placemef@6¢00,000 ordinary shares of the Bank
at the price of KZT 200 per share on the local raark

b) in November 2006, the shareholders of the Bank (C®Gtral-Asian Investment Company,
Subkhanberdin N.S. and EBRD) conducted the placerokrd5,714,706 global depositary
receipts (“GDR”), each representing two sharebaftrice of USD 18.50 per one GDR;

c) in December 2006, the Bank issued shares to existiareholders of the Bank in the amount of
103,500,000 ordinary shares at the price of USIb $28r share denominated in a tenge
equivalent amount through an initial public offerion the local market.

The table below provides a reconciliation of thenber of shares outstanding as of 31 December 2007
and 2006:

Preference Ordinary
shares shares
Number of Number of
shares shares
31 December 2005 124,671,145 374,991,445
Issue of shares - 200,000,000
Sale of treasury shares and repurchase of ownsshare 84,025 (230,747)
31 December 2006 124,755,170 574,760,698
Issue of shares - 49,272
Sale of treasury shares 166,557 39,851
31 December 2007 124,921,727 574,849,821

During 2007, the Bank made additional contributibmghe share capital of subsidiary companies.
The Bank contributed KZT 50 million to the sharepital of JSC Kazkommerts RFCA, which

amounted to 100% of the issued ordinary share alapit the Company. In addition, the Bank

contributed KZT 1,206 million to the share capitdl CJISC Kazkommertsbank Tajikistan, which
amounted to 100% of the ordinary share capital.

Share premium reserve represents an excess ofiegiuins received over the nominal value of
shares issued.

The Group’s distributable profit among shareholdeserves is limited to the amount of its reserves
as disclosed in its statutory accounts. Non-distable reserves are represented by a reserve fund,
which is created as required by Kazakhstan reguigtiin respect of general banking risks, including
future losses and other unforeseen risks or comtitigs. The reserve has been created in accordance
with the regulations of the Republic of Kazakhstiaat provide for the creation of a reserve for ¢hes
purposes of not less than 5% from non-classifisétasecorded in its statutory accounts.
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32. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Group isrey pa financial instruments with off-balance sheet
risk in order to meet the needs of its customengs& instruments, involving varying degrees ofitred
risk, are not reflected in the consolidated balasheet.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit loss undeticgent liabilities and credit commitments, in
the event of non-performance or in the event ofainmpent by the other party where all counterclaims,
collateral or security prove valueless, is represghy the contractual amounts of those instruments

The Group’s uses the same credit control and managepolicies in undertaking off-balance sheet
commitments as it does for on-balance operations.

As at 31 December 2007 provision for losses onicgant liabilities amounted to KZT 7,216 million
(2006: KZT 4,055 million).

The risk-weighted amount is obtained by applyingddr conversion factor and counterparty risk
weightings according to the principles employedh®yBasle Committee on Banking Supervision.

As at 31 December 2006 the credit risk on contingehilities and credit commitments was covered
by collateral of KZT 87,740 million (2006: KZT 722 million). The collateral includes real estate,
deposits and various other financial assets.

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the nominal dractramounts and risk-weighted amounts were:

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Nominal Risk Nominal Risk
amount weighted amount weighted

amount amount
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)

Contingent liabilities and

credit commitments
Guarantees issued and similar

commitments 94,582 94,582 91,683 91,683
Letters of credit and other

transaction related to

contingent obligations 90,510 15,253 92,413 17,982
Commitments on loans and
unused credit lines 10,382 10,382 10,921 10,921

Commitments on loans sold to
JSC Kazakhstan Mortgage
Company with recourse 114 114 131 131

195,588 120,331 195,148 120,717

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2007, capital commitments amouiot&ZT 2,789 million (2006: 5,866 million).
Operating lease commitments

There were no material rental commitments outstands at 31 December 2007 and 2006.
Fiduciary activities

In the normal course of its business the Grouprsriteéo agreements with limited rights on decision
making with clients for the management of assetscitordance with specific criteria established by
clients. The Group may be liable for losses oromdtiaimed at appropriation of the clients’ funds if
such funds or securities are not returned to thetcl The maximum potential financial risk of the

Group at any given moment is equal to the voluméhefclients’ funds plus/minus any unrealized
income/loss on the client’s position. The managdnbetieves that the potential financial risk on

securities held on behalf of the customers is miog¢iient to the Group.
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The Group also provides depositary services tougtomers. As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 the
Group had customer securities in its nominal hosounts totaling:

- on broker and dealer operations 5,203,455,008 detaling KZT 94,829 million (2006: 41,579,742
deals totaling KZT 4,713 million).

- on custodial operations 720,874,948 deals tagak@ZT 20,929 million (2006: 726,520,661 deals
totaling KZT 15,765 million).

Legal proceedings

From time to time and in the normal course of bes#) claims against the Group are received from
customers and counterparties. Management is afghréon that no material unaccrued losses will be
incurred and accordingly no provision has been niadeese consolidated financial statements.

Currently there are claims against the commercgaikb from individuals in relation to hiding of
additional commissions, obtained by loan agreemelntsconnection to this the NBRK issued
instructions, which prescribe the requirement tsclise effective interest rates on loans to
individuals. The management of the Bank believes these claims do not have legal perspectives
and from the moment of the instructions becamectife the related points with effective interest
rate were included to the loan agreements withooosts.

Taxation

Commercial legislation of the countries where th@up operates, including tax legislation, may
allow more than one interpretation. In additiorerthis a risk of tax authorities making arbitrary
judgments of business activities. If a particul@atment, based on management’'s judgment of the
Group’s business activities, was to be challengedhb tax authorities, the Group may be assessed
additional taxes, penalties and interest.

Such uncertainty may relate to the valuation official instruments, valuation of provision for
impairment losses and the market pricing of deatiditionally such uncertainty may relate to the
valuation of temporary differences on the provisamd recovery of the provision for impairment
losses on loans to customers and receivables, asnderestimation of the taxable profit. The
management of the Group believes that it has adaliéax amounts due and therefore no allowance
has been made in the consolidated financial stattisne

Operating environment

The Group’s principal business activities are wittlie Republic of Kazakhstan. Laws and regulations
affecting the business environment in the ReputfliKazakhstan are subject to rapid changes and the
Group’s assets and operations could be at riskt@uegative changes in the political and business
environment.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 25 January 2008, LLP Investment Company Eastit&apfficially changed its name to
LLP Investment Group East Kommerts.

On 19 February 2008, at the Meeting of the Boar®ioéctors the decision to make an additional
contribution to the share capital of JSC Kazkommeite through issue of 290,000 ordinary shares
for total amount of KZT 290 million was made.

On 19 February 2008, at the Meeting of the Boar®ioéctors the decision to make an additional

contribution to the share capital of JSC OCOPAIMai@um Asset Management through issue of
50,000 ordinary shares for total amount of KZT Bifion was made.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties or transactions with related paidie assessed in accordance with IAS 24 “Related
party disclosures”.

In considering each possible related party relatiqm special attention is directed to the substanric
the relationship, and not merely the legal formangactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Bank, have beienirgited on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note. Details of transactions between the Gemd other related parties are disclosed below:

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

(KZT million) (KZT million)
Related party  Total category  Related party  Total category
balances as per financial balances as per financial
statements statements
caption caption

Loans to customers 895 2,506,698 2,052 1,752,776
- entities with joint control or significant

influence over the entity 117 114
- key management personnel of the entity or

its parent 778 1,938
- other related parties - -
Allowance for impairment losses 33 140,363 50 73,936
- entities with joint control or significant

influence over the entity 17 15
- key management personnel of the entity or

its parent 16 35
- other related parties - -
Investments in associates 3,222 3,222 1,718 1,755
- to associates 3,222 1,718
Customer accounts 5,495 895,083 8,326 687,806
- entities with joint control or significant

influence over the entity 1,087 92

- associates 22 1,050
- key management personnel of the entity or

its parent 4,385 7,062
- other related parties 1 122
Provision for guarantees and other off-

balance sheet contingencies - 7,216 356 4,055
- key management personnel of the entity or

its parent - 1
- other related parties - 355
Commitments on loans and unused cred

lines 482 10,382 651 10,921
- entities with joint control or significant

influence over the entity - 215
- key management personnel of the entity or

its parent 482 431
- other related parties - 5
Guarantees issued and similar

commitments 18 94,582 7,142 91,683
- key management personnel of the entity or

its parent 18 30
- other related parties - 7,112
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Included in the consolidated income statement fier wtear ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 are
the following amounts which arose due to transastiweith related parties:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Related party  Total category  Related party  Total category a:
transactions  as per financial  transactions per financial
statements statements
caption caption
Interest income 67 316,458 130 147,250
Interest expense (438) (169,528) (258) (83,115)
Operating expenses (621) (31,200) (500) (19,053)
Short-term employee benefits 621 15,980 500 9,154
Provision on impairment losses on interest
bearing assets, other transactions and
guarantees and off balance sheet
contingencies (365) (74,380) (354) (34,818)
Share of results of associates 1,333 1,333 1,130 1301,

Key management personnel compensation for the yeaded 31 December 2007 and
31 December 2006 is represented by short-term sraplbenefits.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Business segments
The Group is organized on the basis of three maginiess segments:

. Retail banking — representing private banking sewj private customer current accounts,
savings, deposits, investment savings productspdyscredit and debit cards, consumer loans
and mortgages.

. Corporate banking — representing direct debit itssl, current accounts, deposits, overdrafts,
loan and other credit facilities, documentary asedforeign currency and derivative products.

. Investment banking — representing financial insenta trading, structured financing, and
merger and acquisitions advice.

. Other — representing insurance operations and attisfities.

Transactions between the business segments areroralncommercial terms and conditions. Funds
are ordinarily reallocated between segments, reguilh funding cost transfers disclosed in operatin
income. Interest charged for these funds is baseth® Group’s cost of capital. There are no other
material items of income or expense between thénbss segments. Internal charges and transfer
pricing adjustments have been reflected in theopmidince of each business. Revenue sharing
agreements are used to allocate external cust@venues to a business segment on a reasonable basis
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Segment information about these businesses ismessbelow.

Retail Corporate Investment Other Unallocated  Eliminations  As at and for
banking banking banking the yearended
31 December
2007
(KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
External interest income 55,333 240,792 19,564 582 187 - 316,458
Internal interest income 30,263 36,407 145,703 - - (212,373) -
External interest expenses (25,115) (28,243) (116,724) - 554 - (169,528)
Internal interest expenses (36,922) (135,632) (39,819) - - 212,373 -
Net interest income befo
provision for impairmer
losses on interest
bearing assets 23,559 113,324 8,724 582 741 - 146,930
Provisions for impairment
losses on interestearin
assets (9,904) (59,918) (134) - - - (69,956)
NET INTEREST
INCOME 13,655 53,406 8,590 582 741 - 76,974
Net gain on financial ass
and liabilitiesat fair valu
though profit or loss - - 21,627 - - - 21,627
Net loss on foreign
exchange and precious
metals operations 2,240 747 (21,592) - -- - (18,605)
Fee and commission
income 8,567 12,229 2,899 (104) (33) - 23,558
Fee and commission
expense (2,009) (513) (388) (791) (12) - (2,713)
Net realized gain on
investments
available-for-sale - - 41 - - - 41
Dividends received - - 143 2 - - 145
Other income 209 1,843 707 4,145 15 - 6,919
NET NON-INTEREST
INCOME 10,007 14,306 3,437 3,252 (30) - 30,972
OPERATING INCOME 23,662 67,712 12,027 3,834 711 - 107,946
OPERATING EXPENSE (15,986) (10,763) (2,681) (1,194) (576) - (31,200)
PROFITBEFORE OTHE
OPERATING
PROVISIONS AND
RESULTS OF
ASSOCIATES 7,676 56,949 9,346 2,640 135 - 76,746
Provision for insurance &
impairment losses on
other transactions - - - (1,009) (229) - (1,238)
Provision for guarantees
and other off-balance
sheet contingencies - (3,084) (102) - - - (3,186)
Share of results of
associates - - 1,333 - - - 1,333
OPERATING PROFIT
BEFORE INCOME TAX 7,676 53,865 10,577 1,631 (94) - 73,655
Income tax expense - - - - (15,904) - (15,904)
NET PROFIT 7,676 53,865 10,577 1,631 (15,998) - 57,751
Segment assets 452,330 1,914,005 625,716 9,717 999,782 (1,004,318) 2,997,232
Segment liabilities 309,679 585,404 1,758,867 4,120 961,153 (971,706) 2,647,517
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Retall Corporate Investment Other Unallocated Eliminations  As at and for
banking banking banking the yearended
31 December
2006
(KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
External interest income 19,119 112,603 14,594 309 625 - 147,250
Internal interest income 10,879 14,777 61,125 13 0210 (126,820) -
External interest expenses (8,038) (10,033) (64,442) 13 (615) - (83,115)
Internal interest expenses (10,236) (60,338) (16,203) (13) (39,393) 126,183 -
Net interest income before
provision for impairment
losses on interest
bearing assets 11,724 57,009 (4,926) 322 643 (637) 64,135
Provisions for impairment
losses on interest bear
assets (4,224) (28,282) (388) 7 - - (32,887)
NET INTEREST INCOMI 7,500 28,727 (5,314) 329 643 (637) 31,248
Net gain on financial
assets and liabilities at
fair value though profit
or loss - - 4,739 5 - - 4,744
Net gain on foreign
exchange and precious
metals operations 636 390 4,178 2 (2) - 5,204
Fee and commission
income 5,263 10,062 2,921 - - (709) 17,537
Fee and commission
expense (562) (482) (689) (566) (81) 708 (1,672)
Net gain on investments
available-for-sale - - 29 - - - 29
Dividends received - - 83 - - - 83
Other income 16 467 9 2,596 25 (71) 3,042
NET NON-INTEREST
INCOME 5,353 10,437 11,270 2,037 (58) (72) 28,967
OPERATING INCOME 12,853 39,164 5,956 2,366 585 (709) 60,215
OPERATING EXPENSES (6,782) (9,893) (1,159) (852) (1,076) 709 (19,053)
PROFIT BEFORE
OTHER OPERATING
PROVISIONS AND
RESULTS OF
ASSOCIATES 6,071 29,271 4,797 1,514 (491) - 41,162
Provision for insurance
and impairment losses
other transactions - - (52) (331) - - (383)
Provision for guarantees
and other off-balance
sheet contingencies - (2,022) 474 - - - (1,548)
Share of results of
associates - - 1,130 - - - 1,130
OPERATING PROFIT
BEFORE INCOME
TAX 6,071 27,249 6,349 1,183 (491) - 40,361
Income tax expense - - - - (12,600) - (12,600)
NET PROFIT 6,071 27,249 6,349 1,183 (13,091) - 27,761
Segment assets 261,708 1,417,132 765,227 8,244 764,773 (775,228) 2,441,856
Segment liabilities 196,072 491,734 1,485,791 3,351 745,026 (759,069) 2,162,905
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Geographical segments

Segment information for the main geographical segmef the Group is set out below for the years

ended 31 December 2007 and 2006.

Kazakhstan CIs OECD 31 December
Countries 2007
Total
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
Interest income 290,137 26,134 187 316,458
Interest expense (87,918) (14,682) (66,928) (169,528)
Provision on impairment losses on
interest bearing assets (65,904) (4,052) - (69,956)
Net gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 20,343 1,284 - 21,627
Net loss on foreign exchange and
precious metals operations (18,862) 256 1 (18,605)
Fee and commission income 21,740 1,818 - 23,558
Fee and commission expense (2,341) (327) (45) (2,713)
Net realized gain on investments
available-for-sale 41 - - 41
Dividends received 119 26 - 145
Other income 5,956 963 - 6,919
OPERATING INCOME 163,311 11,420 (66,785) 107,946
Kazakhstan CIs OECD 31 December
Countries 2006
Total
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
Interest income 137,070 9,555 625 147,250
Interest expense (37,973) (5,134) (40,008) (83,115)
Provision on impairment losses on
interest bearing assets (31,284) (1,603) - (32,887)
Net gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 4,831 (87) - 4,744
Net gain on foreign exchange and
precious metals operations 4,746 461 ?3) 5,204
Fee and commission income 15,738 1,799 - 17,537
Fee and commission expense (1,553) (38) (81) (1,672)
Net realized gain on investments
available-for-sale 29 - - 29
Dividends received 83 - - 83
Other income 2,776 266 - 3,042
OPERATING INCOME 94,463 5,219 (39,467) 60,215

External operating income has been allocated baseldmicile of the company within the Group.
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36. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is defined as the amount at which ts&riment could be exchanged in a current trangactio
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arraiggth transaction, other than in forced or liguimtat
sale. The estimates presented herein are not @etgssdicative of the amounts the Group could
realize in a market exchange from the sale oliishbldings of a particular instrument.

The following methods and assumptions are usedhé@yGroup to estimate the fair value of financial
instruments not carried at fair value.

Loans and advances to and from banks — for aseetdiabilities maturing within one month, the

carrying amount approximates fair value due tortiatively short-term maturity of these financial

instruments. For the assets and liabilities matuimover one month, the fair value in relation to
repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements tivagted as the fair value of collateral pledged
and received. For all other loans and advancesairging value approximates the fair value.

Debt securities issued — market values have besth wdhere available, to determine the fair value of
debt securities traded on an active market.

Subordinated debt — market values have been udsgtevavailable, to determine the fair value of
subordinated bonds issued and perpetual debt ddfamerts Finance 2 B.V.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilitieisere the fair value does not approximate the aagry
amount in the consolidated balance sheet of theisaoe presented below:

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
value value

(KZT million) (KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million)

Loans and advances to banks 212,823 212,912 197,191 203,318
Loans and advances from banks 723,431 727,605 884,301 890,812
Debt securities issued 739,688 615,520 424,162 434,851
Subordinated debt 108,166 106,688 78,922 79,928

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value thlgi profit or loss and investments available-fdesa
are carried at fair value in the consolidated badasheet. The carrying amounts of cash and balances
with national (central) banks, investments helan@turity and customer accounts approximates fair
value due to the short-term nature of such findregiruments. It was not practicable to the Grtwp
estimate the fair value of its loans to customeis @her borrowed funds.

37. REGULATORY MATTERS

Quantitative measures established by regulatioensure capital adequacy require the Group to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total ard 1i capital to risk weighted assets.

Capital adequacy requirements are set by the FM#Acantrolled using the principles, methods and
factors identified by the Basle Committee on BagkBupervision.
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Composition of
regulatory capitd

Tier 1 capital:

Share capital (ordinary
shares)

Share premiumreserve

Retained earnings

Current income

Minority interest

Goodwill

Innovation instruments

Total qualifying tier 1
capital

Property and
equipment
revaluation reserve

Share capital
(preferred shares)

Subordinated debt °

Total qualifying tier 2
capital

Total capital

Ratio of tier 1 capital
adequacy

Capital adequacy ratio

31 December 31 December Change 31 December 31 December Change
2007 2006 2006 2005
(KZT (KzT (KZT (KzZT (KZT (KzT
million) million) million) million) million) million)
5,749 5,748 1 5,748 3,750 1,998
152,855 152,534 321 152,534 15,902 136,632
84,843 58,763 26,080 58,763 40,481 18,282
55,963 25,985 29,978 25,985 18,392 7,593
12,552 15,272 (2,720) 15,272 6,976 8,296
(2,405) (2,405) - (2,405) (2,405) -
11,900 12,546 (646) 12,546 13,286 (740)
321,457 268,443 53,014 268,443 96,382 172,061
5,981 2,458 3,623 2,458 1,519 939
1,249 1,247 2 1,247 1,247 -
86,617 52,997 33,620 52,997 28,495 24,502
93,847 56,702 37,145 56,702 31,261 25,441
415,304 325,145 90,159 325,145 127,643 197,502
11.72% 12.37% (0.65)% 12.37% 10.36% 2.01%
15.15% 14.98% (0.17)% 14.98% 13.73% 1.26%

& According to the principles applied by Basle Cotieai

® As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 the Group inclimiéite computation of total capital for capital
adequacy purposes the subordinated debt receivadhws limited to 50% of Tier 1 capital. In the
event of bankruptcy or liquidation of the Bank, agment of this debt is subordinate to the
repayments of the Bank’s liabilities to all otheeditors.

During year 2007 and 2006 the Group complied witeet capital requirements.

The capital adequacy ratio was calculated accordonghe principles employed by the Basle
Committee by applying the following risk estimateshe assets and off-balance sheet commitments

net of allowances for losses:

Estimation

0%
0%
20%
100%

Description of position

Cash and balances with national (central) banks
State debt securities
Loans and advances to banks for up to 1 year
Loans to customers

100%
50%
100%

Guarantees

Obligations and commitments on unused loarts thvé initial maturity of over 1 year
Other assets
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38.

39.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that esiiti the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholdarsugh the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of dalbtich includes subordinated debt disclosed in
Note 31, and equity attributable to equity holdefshe parent, comprising issued capital, reserves
and retained earnings as disclosed in the consetiddatement of changes in equity.

The Management Board of the Bank reviews its chpitacture on quarterly basis. Based on the
recommendations of the Management Board by makigjsibns on the Board of Directors or
shareholders meeting, the Group balances its d\waaital structure through new share issues, gssue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, #tredpayment of dividends.

The Group’s overall capital risk management pofeyains unchanged from 2006.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
Management of risks is fundamental to the Groupsress. The risk management functions include:

* Risks identification:The risks, which the Group is exposed to in itsydactivities, are
identified by the risk management system.

* Measuring risks: The Group measures the risks ugmigpus methodologies, which include
risk based profitability analysis, calculation obsgible loss amounts, and utilization of
specialized models. Measurement models and assdciassumptions are periodically
reviewed to ensure that the tools represent the gdequately and reasonably.

» Risk monitoring: Group’s policies and proceduretedaine the processes on mitigating and
decreasing the risks and set the limits on varigpes of operations. Such limits are reviewed
on a periodic basis specified by internal documehtke Group.

* Risk reporting: Risk reporting is performed onreeliof business and on a consolidated basis.
This information is periodically presented to tharragement.

The main risks inherent to the Group’s operatioestlaose related to:

e Credit risk;

* Operational risk;
e Liquidity risk;

* Market risk;

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk which is tisi that a counterparty to a financial instrumerit wi
fail to discharge an obligation and cause the gtlaety to incur a financial loss.

Risk management and monitoring is performed wigiginlimits by the Credit Committees and Board of
the Group. Risk management coordination is perfdrimg the risk management specialist or Risk
Management Department. Daily risk management iopaed by the Head of the Credit
Departments or Credit Divisions of branches andilidries.

While considering loan applications of corporaterbwers, the related Credit Committees take into
account the analysis and conclusions of risk mamagé collateral valuation, legal and security
departments. For the purpose of credit risk anglyg@rtain of the Group divisions use rating models
which are based on assumptions and methodolodiezedtby the international rating agencies.
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While considering loan application of individualsdasmall businesses, the Group uses a standardized
decision making approach on granting the loans. 8gmoach includes the application of standard
terms and criteria, which are set by the relevaadit committees. The standardized approach to
evaluate the creditworthiness of the borrower idekithe use of scoring models for some types of
products. The scoring models result in a more ieffiic application process, decreased operating
expenses as well as decreased operational risks,tauhe removal of significant amounts of
subjectivity.

The Group determines the level of credit risk idertakes by setting limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one borrower, or groupsbofrowers, and to industry and geographical
segments. Limits on the level of credit risk by @rbwer and a product, by industry sector and by
region are approved by the Credit Committee. Thaosire to any individual borrower is further
restricted by sub-limits covering on and off-balarngheet exposures which are set by the Credit
Committee.

Off-balance sheet credit commitments represent athysortions of credit in the form of loans,
guarantees or letters of credit. The credit risloffbalance sheet financial instruments is defiaed
the probability of losses due to the inability bétcounterparty to comply with the contractual ®&rm
and conditions. With respect to credit risk on lmffance sheet instruments, the Group is potentially
exposed to a loss in an amount equal to the tateded commitments. The actual amount of this Bss i
likely to be less than the total unused commitmesitee the commitments are contingent upon
customers maintaining certain credit standards. Treup applies the same credit policy to
contingent liabilities as it does to the on-balagkeet financial instruments.

Operational risk

The Group is exposed to operational risk whichhesrisk of losses that can be a result of any Byste
inefficiencies or breaks of internal processestesys, presence of human error or effect of any
external negative factor. At present times the @rases following tools to manage the operational
risk, which comply with the best world banking piees.

* Risk self assessment (“RSA”);

* New processes, products and system assessment8R"QOR
»  Operational losses database (“CLD");

» Key operational risk controls (“*KORC"); and

» Key risk indicators (“KRI”).

The operational risk management tools allow theu@rto identify those banking activities that are
most vulnerable to operational risks, to evaluatd anonitor losses of the Group arising from
operational risk and to set relevant controls. Taesy also used to develop preventive and detective
tools as well as measures for decreasing the tdvedk.

Maximum exposure

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk var@gnificantly and is dependent on both
individual risks of certain financial assets andegyal market economy risks.

The following table presents the maximum exposuvectedit risk of financial assets and
commitments. For financial assets the maximum exm@oequals to a carrying value of those assets
prior to any offset or collateral. For financial ayantees and other commitments the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount tmeu@ would have to pay if the guarantee was
called on or in the case of commitments, if thenlaenount was called on. The information in relation
to financial guarantees and other contingent sl is disclosed in Note 32.
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31 December

2007
Maximum Offset Net exposure after Collateral Net exposure
exposure offset pledged after offset and
collateral
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 188,776 - 188,776 - 188,776
Loans and advances to banks 212,823 (15,038) 197,785 (799) 196,986
Loans to customers 2,366,335 (40,867) 2,325,468 (1,604,068) 721,400
Investments available-for-
sale 3,036 - 3,036 - 3,036
Investments held to maturity 375 - 375 - 375
31 December
2006
Maximum Offset Net exposure Collateral Net exposure after
exposure after offset pledged offset and
collateral
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 322,618 - 322,618 - 322,618
Loans and advances to banks 197,191 (49,055) 148,136 (45,869) 102,267
Loans to customers 1,678,840 (9,081) 1,669,759 (1,108,429) 561,330
Investments available-for-
sale 2,628 - 2,628 - 2,628
Investments held to maturity 357 - 357 - 357

! A description of the collateral presented on lo@nsustomers is included in Note 17.

As at 31 December 2007 loans and advances to kms#&snclude loans under reverse repurchase
agreements in amount of KZT 679 million (2006: KZ3,505 million).

As at 31 December 2007 loans to customers incladesl under reverse repurchase agreements in
amount of KZT 20,549 million (2006: KZT 35,020 niilh).

As at 31 December 2007 financial assets at famesgihrough profit or loss also include securities
collateralized under repurchase agreements witlal téair value of KZT 82,147 million
(2006: KZT 262,008 million).

In instances where one party to a financial insentfails to fully or partially discharge a credit
obligation, the Group has the right to ensure faiént of these obligations through the:

» joint sale of the pledged assets;

» transfer of ownership rights on pledged assetsdor@ance with the established law;

» disposal of pledged assets through extrajudiciatguures through a tendering process; and
» exercising of the charge on pledged assets thrjuglitial procedures;

Where there is a joint sale of the pledged as#®isGroup normally uses a tripartite agreement with
the borrower and acquirer of the pledged assetgetthis agreement the acquirer of the pledged
assets has an obligation to repay the full amodnthe outstanding debt; the borrower has an
obligation to transfer the right of ownership oétassets to the acquirer, and the Group releases th
obligation from the borrower and removes the pleolger the assets.

Per certain collateral agreements, the Group hasigiit to dispose of assets pledged through extra
judicial procedures. These procedures include dle & assets through a tendering process. The sale
of property takes approximately 3 months. The safleassets pledged under mortgage loan
agreements is performed through tenders organigedperson empowered to act on the behalf of the
Group.

The Group exercises the charge on pledged asgetggthjudicial procedures if it is impossible or

inefficient to use alternative methods or where sbzure of assets pledged is required in order to
protect the rights on the Group.
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Financial assets are graded according to the ducredit rating of international rating agenciebeT
highest possible rating is AAA. Investment gradeha financial assets have ratings from AAA to
BBB. Financial assets which have ratings lower tBBB are classified as a speculative grade.

The following table details the credit ratings mfaincial assets held by the Group:

AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not 31 December
Rated 2007
Total
(KZT million)
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 11,321 44,627 72,488 13,878 14,995 31,467 188,776
Loans and advances to
banks - 106,297 17,577 2,755 38,344 47,850 212,823
Loans to customers - - - 242 6,438 2,359,655 233656,
Investments available-for-
sale - - - 1,537 289 1,210 3,036
Investments held to
maturity - - - - 317 58 375
AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not 31 December
Rated 2006
Total
(KZT million)
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 96,649 126,862 8,374 42,645 29,977 18,111 322,618
Loans and advances to
banks - 23,210 835 878 88,011 84,257 197,191
Loans to customers - - - 325 3,713 1,674,802 186818,
Investments available-for-
sale - - - 945 311 1,372 2,628
Investments held to maturity - - - 14 304 39 357

The banking industry is generally exposed to cradk through its financial assets and contingent
liabilities. Main credit risk exposure of the Groigpconcentrated within the Republic of Kazakhstan.
The exposure is monitored on a regular basis tarenthat the credit limits and credit worthiness
guidelines established by the Group’s risk managemelicy are not breached.

The Group enters into numerous transactions wheredunterparties are not rated by international
rating agencies. The Group has developed interoaleis, which allow it to determine the rating of
counterparties, which are comparable to ratingatefnational rating agencies. These models include
rating models for corporate customers and scoriadeats for individuals and small business.

Rating model

The Group has developed an internal rating modedeth on the principles and methods used by
international rating agencies for the assessmewtaifit risk of corporate borrowers. The rating of
corporate borrower is based on an analysis ofittengial ratios of the borrower, and an analysis of
the market and industry sector, in which the bomowperates. The model also takes into
consideration various qualitative factors, suchnamnagement efficiency and borrower's market
share.

The application of the internal rating model resut a standardized approach in the analysis of
corporate borrowers and provides a quantitativesassent of the creditworthiness of a borrower that
does not have a rating from an international ragiggncy. The model takes into account specificl loca
market conditions.

The quality of the internal rating model is exandiran a regular basis through an assessment of both
its effectiveness and validity. The Group revisesmodel when deficiencies are identified.

Scoring models

The Group uses scoring models as a statisticalttoaksess the future creditworthiness of new and
existing borrowers of the Group. Scoring models applied for assessment of the credit risk of
individuals and small business enterprises.
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The scoring models interpret socio-demographic famehcial indicators, behavioural variables, the
credit history of borrowers and historic data frexternal sources, such as Credit Bureau reports.
Each of the parameters inserted into scoring moagla numeric value, the sum of which represents
the borrower’s internal credit score (rating). Tdssigned score reflects the probability of defatilt
the borrower.

The scoring models standardize and automate theegsoof decision making and decrease the
operating expenses and operational risks of theigsréhe scoring model is also used in the internal
management decision making process as it perngtfotfecasting of profits and losses of the credit
departments. The scoring model is assessed ortiaualrbasis for its effectiveness and validity.

The Group applies internal rating and scoring madihagies to specific corporate loans and groups of
retail and small business loans, which incorpovatéous underlying master scales that are different
from that used by international rating agenciese ®toring methodologies are tailor-made for
specific products and are applied at various stayes the life of the loan. As a result, it is not

possible to make a cross-product score comparigoohvwould agree to the outstanding balance of
loans to customers per the consolidated balanag.she such, more detailed information is not being
presented.

The following table details the carrying value gfets that are impaired and the ageing of those tha
are past due but not impaired in KZT million:

Financial assets past due but not 31 December 2007

impaired
Neither  0-3 3-6 6  Greater Financial Total
past due months months months than assets tha
nor to 1 year 1 year have beer
impaired impaired
Financial assets at fair value thro
profit or los: 188,776 - - - - - 188,776
Loans and advances to banks 188,806 - - - - 24,017 212,823
Loans to customers 940,145 5,064 - - - 1,421,1262,366,335
Investments available-for-sale 3,036 - - - - - 3,036
Investments held to maturity 375 - - - - - 375

Financial assets past due but not 31 December 2006

impaired
Neither 0-3 3-6 6 Greater Financial Total
past due months months months than assets tha
nor to 1 yearone yearhave been
impaired impaired
Financial assets at fair value thro
profit or los: 322,618 - - - - - 322,618
Loans and advances to banks 182,422 - - - - 14,769 197,191
Loans to customers 956,110 2,624 - - - 720,1061,678,840
Investments available-for-sale 2,628 - - - - - 2,628
Investments held to maturity 357 - - - - - 357

In the table above, loans to customers are cladsifs impaired when provided for under the Group’s
internal policies. Provision rate on these loamgjes from 2% to 100%. As at 31 December 2007, of
the KZT 1,421,126 million (2006: KZT 720,106 miliip of impaired loans to customers,
KZT 1,265,283 million (2006: KZT 615,012 millionyeclassified as satisfactory and for which the
provision rate is 5%.

Geographical concentration

The relevant Credit Committees exercise controk dlve risk in the legislation and regulatory arena
and assesses its influence on the Group’s actiVitg. Group sets country limits for all countriegtwi
ratings below A- according to the Standard and Baassification.

The Management of the Group considers the main eegto be the Republic of Kazakhstan.
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The geographical concentration of assets and iliasiis set out in tables below:

Kazakhstan CIs OECD countries Non-OECD 31 December
countries 2007
Total
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
ASSETS:
Cash and balances with national (central)
banks 144,174 7,868 16,106 - 168,148
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 66,429 11,261 110,923 163 188,776
Loans and advances to banks 28,401 45,380 139,042 - 212,823
Loans to customers 1,855,687 303,936 46,011 160,701 2,366,335
Investments available-for-sale 3,036 - - - 3,036
Investments held to maturity 317 58 - - 375
Investments in associates 3,222 - - - 3,222
Goodwill 2,405 - - - 2,405
Property, equipment and intangible assets 31,974 ,2852 - - 34,259
Other assets 10,211 3,239 4,312 91 17,853
TOTAL ASSETS 2,145,856 374,027 316,394 160,955 2,997,232
LIABILITIES:
Loans and advances from banks 118,412 46,844 551,534 6,641 723,431
Customer accounts 770,799 32,548 82,248 9,488 895,083
Derivative financial instruments 3,078 37 4,445 170 7,730
Debt securities issued - 70,142 667,372 2,174 739,688
Other borrowed funds 12,928 2 136,004 - 148,934
Provisions 10,550 88 - - 10,638
Deferred income tax liability 30,486 10 - - 30,496
Dividends payable - 2 - - 2
Other liabilities 9,309 1,679 2,851 6 13,845
Subordinated debt 29,125 - 79,041 108,166
TOTAL LIABILITIES 984,687 151,352 1,523,495 18,479 2,678,013
NET POSITION 1,161,169 222,675 (1,207,101) 142,476
Kazakhstan CIs OECD countries Non-OECD 31 December
countries 2006
Total
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
ASSETS:
Cash and balances with national (central)
banks 189,711 6,814 12,480 - 209,005
Precious metals - - 807 - 807
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 84,385 8,295 229,938 - 322,618
Loans and advances to banks 63,574 91,693 41,924 - 197,191
Loans to customers 1,180,864 228,282 64,396 205,298 1,678,840
Investments available-for-sale 2,628 - - - 2,628
Investments held to maturity 318 39 - - 357
Investments in associates 1,755 - - - 1,755
Goodwill 2,405 - - - 2,405
Property, equipment and intangible assets 14,706 975 - - 15,681
Other assets 7,443 1,355 1,742 29 10,569
TOTAL ASSETS 1,547,789 337,453 351,287 205,327 2,441,856
LIABILITIES:
Loans and advances from banks 63,345 70,923 722,778 27,255 884,301
Customer accounts 642,492 22,603 20,321 2,390 687,806
Derivative financial instruments 983 4 2,565 2 3,554
Debt securities issued 3,322 37,216 383,396 228 424,162
Other borrowed funds 260 2 68,552 - 68,814
Provisions 6,393 149 1 215 6,758
Deferred income tax liability 16,749 101 - - 16,850
Dividends payable 1 - - - 1
Other liabilities 6,766 595 1,174 52 8,587
Subordinated debt 21,909 2,570 54,443 - 78,922
TOTAL LIABILITIES 762,220 134,163 1,253,230 30,142 2,179,755
NET POSITION 785,569 203,290 (901,943) 175,185
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Tangible assets (cash on hand, precious metalsnigge and equipment) and other capital
expenditure and thus depreciation are concentnattiin the Republic of Kazakhstan for both the
year ending 31 December 2007 and 2006.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the availability of suffient funds to meet deposit withdrawals and other
financial commitments of the Group associated \iitancial instruments as they actually fall due as
a result of decrease possibilities of the Groumaise appropriate funds.

The ALMC controls these types of risks by meanmafurity analysis prepared by the Department of
Financial Control, determining the Group’s stratégrythe next financial period. Current liquidity i
managed by the Treasury Department through the de#the money markets, placement of available
funds in liquid securities within limits set by tih& MC.

With the purpose of managing the liquidity risketroup performs daily monitoring of future
expected cash flows on clients’ and banking opemati which is a part of assets and liabilities
management process.

The Group maintains the compliance of liquidity uggments, such as current and short-term
liquidity ratios and foreign exchange liquidity litsy set by the regulatory bodies. In the
management’s opinion limits described above arnets@nd that measure guarantees maintaining
appropriate liquidity level.

The following table shows how management monitbes liquidity and interest risks. The table is

based on the time period to maturity or contractagticing of the financial instruments and it does
not reconcile to the consolidated balance sheatrasult of deferred tax liabilities being excluded
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Up to 1 month 1 month to 3 month to lyearto Over 5 years Maturity 31 December
3 months 1year 5 years undefined 2007
Total
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
ASSETS:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 10,459 129,347 31,817 - - - 171,623
Loans and advances to banks 158,420 26,415 6,918 18,572 1,171 - 211,496
Loans to customers 121,342 160,508 449,367 838,7 709,549 - 2,299,508
Investments available-for-sale - 3 179 1,535 141, - 2,864
Investments held to maturity - 24 34 104 208 - 370
Total interest bearing assets 290,221 316,297 ,3488 878,953 712,075 - 2,685,861
Cash and balances with
national (central) banks 168,148 - - - - - 168,148
Equity instruments - - - - - 15,649 15,649
Investments in associates - - - - - 3,222 223,
Goodwill - - - - - 2,405 2,405
Property, equipment and
intangible assets - - - - - 34,259 34,259
Accrued interest income on
interest-bearing assets 34,227 19,371 10,687 195,2 331 - 69,835
Other assets 3,012 8,143 5,125 1,573 - - 587,8
TOTAL ASSETS 495,608 343,811 504,127 885,745 2,406 55,535 2,997,232
Up to 1 month 1 month to 3 month to 1lyearto Over 5 years Maturity 31 December
3 months 1year 5 years undefined 2007
Total
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)  (KZT million)
LIABILITIES:
Loans and advances from
banks 141,216 160,676 230,012 166,715 19,540 - 718,159
Customer accounts 320,227 127,509 203,474 225,057 2,300 - 878,567
Debt securities issued 1,964 11,060 35,288 280,996 389,255 - 718,563
Other borrowed funds - 585 - 43,231 104,498 - 148,314
Subordinated debt - - - 3,293 103,080 - 106,373
Total interest bearing liabilities 463,407 299,830 468,774 719,292 618,673 - 2,569,976
Derivative financial
instruments 331 7,399 - - - - 7,730
Provisions 950 3,022 1,770 1,471 3 3,422 10,638
Deferred income tax liability 2,339 1,362 8,651 10,251 7,893 - 30,496
Dividends payable - 2 - - - - 2
Accrued interest expense on
interest-bearing liabilities 7,111 20,614 14,321 1,445 1,835 - 45,326
Other liabilities 10,415 1,601 1,717 112 - - 13,845
TOTAL LIABILITIES 484,553 333,830 495,233 732,571 628,404 3,422 2,678,013
Liquidity gap 11,055 9,981 8,894 153,174 84,002
Interest sensitivity gap (173,186) 16,467 19,541 159,661 93,402
Cumulative interest sensitivity
gap (173,186) (156,719) (137,178) 22,483 115,885
Cumulative interest sensitivity
gap as a percentage of total
assets (5.78%) (5.23%) (4.58%) 0.75% 3.87%
Contingent liabilities and crec
commitments 208 66,057 69,709 45,883 - 6,515
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Up to 1 month 1 month to 3 month to 1lyearto Over 5 years Maturity 31 December
3 months 1year 5 years undefined 2006
Total
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million)
ASSETS:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 32,171 217,265 64,627 613 - - 314,676
Loans and advances to banks 152,190 21,099 21,722 27 1,293 - 196,331
Loans to customers 108,530 136,764 317,916 609,3 463,174 - 1,645,734
Investments available-for-sale 473 - 557 1,207 350 - 2,587
Investments held to maturity - - 39 22 290 - 351
Total interest bearing assets 293,364 375,128 4,860 621,219 465,107 - 2,159,679
Cash and balances with
national (central) banks 209,005 - - - - - 209,005
Precious metals 807 - - - - - 807
Equity investments 6,128 6,128
Investments in associates - - - - - 1,755 53,7
Goodwill - - - - - 2,405 2,405
Property, equipment and
intangible assets - - - - - 15,681 15,681
Accrued interest income on
interest-bearing assets 29,322 5,013 1,427 59 6 - 35,827
Other assets 4,142 2,319 3,993 115 - - 10,569
Total assets 536,640 382,460 410,281 621,393 5,148 25,969 2,441,856
Up to 1 month 1 month to 3 month to 1lyearto Over 5 years Maturity 31 December
3 months 1year 5 years undefined 2006*
Total
(KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million) (KZT million)
LIABILITIES:
Loans and advances from
banks 336,544 111,831 51,564 379,901 1,070 - 880,910
Customer accounts 355,322 116,990 105,051 78,489 4824 - 680,340
Debt securities issued 4,288 661 33,589 142,960 235,720 - 417,218
Other borrowed funds - - 262 6,804 61,493 - 68,559
Subordinated debt - - 41 5,988 71,216 - 77,245
Total interest bearing
financial liabilities 696,154 229,482 190,507 61421 393,987 - 2,124,272
Derivative financial
instruments 73 2,554 927 - - - 3,554
Provisions 712 378 1,306 1,640 18 2,704 6,758
Deferred income tax liabilities 11,003 5,831 16 - - - 16,850
Preferred shares dividends 1 - - - - - 1
Accrued interest expense on
interest-bearing liabilities 5,962 5,738 7,266 735 32 - 19,733
Other liabilities 2,518 3,395 2,654 20 - - 8,587
Total liabilities 716,423 247,378 202,676 616,537 94,837 2,704 2,179,755
Liquidity gap (179,783) 135,082 207,605 4,856 71,076
Interest sensitivity gap (402,790) 145,646 214,354 7,077 71,120
Cumulative interest sensitivity
gap (402,790) (257,144) (42,790) (35,713) 35,407
Cumulative interest sensitivity
gap as a percentage of total
assets (16.50)% (10.53)% (1.75)% (1.46)% 1.45%
Contingent liabilities andredit
commitments - 41,922 76,833 67,571 587 4,180
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The tables include the maturity dates for finaneis$ets and financial liabilities, as they fall due
Based on prior experience, the Group considersghiy unlikely that all customer accounts seek
repayment on maturity. Historically the majority safch deposits are rolled over. The Group is aware
of the importance of maintaining the stability bése deposits. In order to achieve this it is dsden
that the Group ensures depositor confidence irGitmeip’s liquidity, by continuing to position itself
as the depositor of choice in local markets aneaaihg financial institution in both the Republic o
Kazakhstan and abroad. The Group does not usecondiged contractual maturity information when
managing its operations.

Market risk

Market risk covers interest rate risk, currency rand other pricing risks to which the Group is
exposed.

In year 2007 the Group started to use the marlsit sensitivity analysis. Methodology presents
separate analysis for each type of market riskghwvtiie Group is exposed to and reflects the effect
change on equity and income statement in a risklvia; which was reasonable as at reporting date.

The Group uses VaR (“Value-at-Risk”) model to asgsbe price risk but it has opted to disclose only
the sensitivity analysis.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of the losses agéiselt of changes in the future cash flow of aficial
instrument fluctuation because of changes in marietest rates.

The Group is exposed to changes in interest rhtesigh its placement of funds with both fixed and
floating interest rates. The Group attempts togate this risk through having corresponding assets
and liabilities with fixed and floating interestea.

The ALMC manages interest rate and market riskenaiching the Group’s interest rate position, so
as to ensure the Group maintains a positive interesgin. Although a significant portion of the
Group’s assets are placed with a fixed interes, ile credit agreements entered into by the Group
contain provisions which permit the Group to charigerest rates in the credit agreements.
The Department of Financial Control monitors thsuits of the financial activity of the Group and
continually assesses the vulnerability of the Grimuphanges in interest rates.

The following table presents an analysis of interate risk. Effective interest rates are preseigd
categories of financial assets and liabilities ébednine interest rate exposure and effectivenieseo
interest rate policy used by the Group.

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
% % % % % %
in KZT in USD in other in KZT in USD in other
currencies currencies
ASSETS
Financial assstat fair value throug
profit or loss 9.39 4.99 5.07 6.54 4.95 11.00
Loans and advances to banks 6.54 6.73 3.98 1.97 8.26 251
Loans to customers 14.16 13.69 14.27 13.56 12.20 12.89
Investments available-for-sale and
held to maturity 9.04 - 6.30 8.13 9.21 7.05
LIABILITIES :
Loans and advances from banks 6.93 6.61 3.73 3.01 6.44 4.65
Customer accounts 7.83 7.77 4.22 5.44 4.20 4.41
Debt securities issued - 7.98 6.66 7.00 8.13 5.55
Other borrowed funds 9.84 6.29 - 1.95 6.9 5.00
Subordinated debt 7.50 8.67 - 7.50 8.32 -
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The Group uses derivative financial instrumentmttigate the results of changes in interest rates a
control the interest rate margin by types of praslumanagement monitors the interest rate margin of
the Group and believes that the Group is not expasaignificant risk of change in interest rates a
related cash flow interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The Risk Management Department periodically esesigtte Group’s sensitivity to changes in market

interest rates and its influence on the Group'ditadaility, and if necessary, the Risk Management

Department suggests decreasing the relevant nghksleThe management of the Group considers the
suggestions and amends the further activity ofGheup. At the moment the Group uses a range of
100 basis points, which has been determined asasdnably possible change in the risk variable” by
management in relation to the sensitivity of itaficial instruments.

The following table presents the sensitivity of tteasolidated income statement, all other paraeter
assumed to be constant.

Impact on consolidated profit before tax:

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
(KZT million) (KZT million)
+ 100 bp - 100 bp + 100 bp - 100 bp
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Bonds (1,338) 1,423 (2,685) 2,870
Derivative financial instruments 947 (958) - -
Instruments with floating rates:
Loans and advances to banks 18 (18) - -
Loans to customers 566 (566) 427 (427)
Investments held-to-maturity
Instruments with floating rates 3 3) 3 3)
Liabilities:
Instruments with floating rates:
Loans and advances from banks (3,030) 3,030 (1,596) 1,596
Debt securities issued (5,621) 5,621 (4,218) 4,218
Subordinated debt - - (227) 127
Net effect on profit before tax (8,455) 8,529 (B)L9 8,381

Sensitivity of the consolidated income statemepregents fluctuations due to changes in interest
rates on interest income for the period of one yestimated on the basis of interest-bearing
instruments of the trading portfolio, and assets labilities with floating interest rates.
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Possible losses from a change in interest ratel0Bybasis points, with other criteria assumed to be
constant, comprise 3% from consolidated equity e Group, which complies with acceptable
Group’s level of risk, and does not lead to théher changes in the strategy and policy of the @rou

The sensitivity of equity to possible changes ieriest rates as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 has
been calculated. If there were to be a changetémdst rates of 100 basis points, this would reaudt
movement of 3% of total equity of the Group, whicbmplies with acceptable levels of risk
established by the Group. This sensitivity does awtsider the tax effect in the overall impact to
equity.

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
100 bp -100 bp 100 bp -100 bp
Assets (KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million)  (KZT million)
Investments available-for-sale
Bonds (73) 76 (60) 63
Net effect on profit before tax (8,455) 8,529 (8,196) 8,381
Change in equity (8,528) 8,605 (8,256) 8,444

The management of the Group periodically monitdrs interest rate margin of the Group and
believes that the Group is not exposed to sigmifiaégsk of the fluctuations in interest rates and
correspondent risk of changes in cash flows.

Currency risk

Currency risk is defined as the risk that the valfia financial instrument will fluctuate due toactyes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group is exposdleaffects of fluctuations in the prevailing fgei
currency exchange rates on its financial positiwh @sh flows.

The ALMC controls currency risk by management @& dpen currency position on the estimated basis
of KZT devaluation and other macroeconomic indicgtavhich gives the Group an opportunity to
minimize losses from significant currency ratestlations toward its national currency. The Treasur
Department performs daily monitoring of the Groupfsen currency position with the aim to match
the requirements of regulatory bodies.
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As at 31 December 2007 the Group’s exposure tagioreurrency exchange rate risk is presented in

the table below:

ASSETS:

Cash and balances with national
(central) banks
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Loans and advances to banks
Loans to customers
Investments available-for-sale
Investments held to maturity
Investments in associates

Goodwiill

Property, equipment and intangible

assets
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:

Loans and advances from banks

Customer accounts

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Debt securities issued

Other borrowed funds

Provisions

Deferred income tax liabilities
Dividends payable

Other liabilities

Subordinated debt

Total liabilities

OPEN BALANCE SHEET

POSITION

Derivative financial instruments and spot contracts

KZT usb EUR RUR Other CCY 31 December
2007
Total
(KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)
57,840 46,588 3,465 6,171 54,084 8,118
59,371 97,047 8,445 17,896 6,017 138
12,968 125,370 56,086 1,527 6,872 212,823
891,041 1,369,863 4,955 79,548 928 2,366,335
3,036 - - - - 3,036
317 - - - 58 375
3,222 - - - - 3,222
2,405 - - - - 2,405
31,974 - - 2,146 139 34,259
9,568 3,791 1,555 2,318 621 17,853
1,071,742 1,642,659 94,506 119,606 788, 2,997,232
31,993 576,394 22,682 14,721 77,641 723,431
542,353 290,241 33,372 27,808 91,30 895,083
2,831 4,861 - 25 13 7,730
- 363,358 194,526 57,120 ,6824 739,688
18,929 130,005 - - - 148,934
7,235 2,528 804 60 11 10,638
30,486 - - - 10 806
- - - - 2 2
8,934 1,389 1,149 1,670 703 18,84
28,929 79,237 - - - 108,166
671,690 1,448,013 252,533 101,404 204,373 2,678,013
400,052 194,646 (158,027) 18,202 (135,654)

Fair value of derivative financial instruments ambt contracts are included in the currency arglysi
presented above and the following table presentiseiuanalysis of currency risk on derivative finih
instruments and spot contracts as at 31 Decemb&r. 20

Accounts payable on spot and
derivative contracts

Accounts receivable on spot and
derivative contracts

NET SPOT AND DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

POSITION
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KZT UsD EUR RUR Other 31 December
CCYy 2007
Total
(KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)
(200,473) (312,485) (1,240) (6,992) (605) (521,795)
70,626 159,739 160,870 14,846 140,394 546,475
(129,847) (152,746) 159,630 7,854 139,789



As at 31 December 2006 the Group’s exposure togior@irrency exchange rate risk is presented in the

table below:

KZT USsD EUR RUR Other 31 December
CCY 2006
Total
(KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million) (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)
ASSETS :
Cash and balances with national
(central) banks 189,718 10,548 2,707 5,198 834 0R39,
Precious metals - - - - 807 807
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 76,500 228,059 9,621 8,290 148 322,618
Loans and advances to banks 76,647 90,338 15,061 ,15414 991 197,191
Loans to customers 525,052 1,117,469 13,683 22,014 622 1,678,840
Investments available-for-sale 2,625 3 - - - 2,628
Investments held to maturity 318 - - - 39 357
Investments in associates 1,755 - - - - 1,755
Goodwill 2,405 - - - - 2,405
Property, equipment and intangible
assets 14,706 - - 847 128 15,681
Other assets 6,518 2,540 399 1,074 38 10,569
TOTAL ASSETS 896,244 1,448,957 41,471 51,577 3,607 2,441,856
LIABILITIES
Loans and advances from banks 171,762 669,690 24,80 17,574 474 884,301
Customer accounts 387,384 262,057 20,855 16,487 31,02 687,806
Derivative financial instruments 1,310 2,239 - 5 - 3,554
Debt securities issued 3,133 354,654 50,149 7,823 ,4038 424,162
Other borrowed funds 156 68,554 104 - - 68,814
Provisions 3,691 1,954 1,108 1 4 6,758
Deffered income tax liabilities 16,749 - - 85 16 ,850
Dividends on preferred shares 1 - - - - 1
Other liabilities 6,677 1,396 48 423 43 8,587
Subordinated debt 21,770 57,152 - - - 78,922
Total liabilities 612,633 1,417,696 97,065 42,398 ,963 2,179,755
OPEN BALANCE SHEET
POSITION 283,611 31,261 (55,594) 9,179 (6,356)

Derivative financial instruments and spot contracts

Fair value of derivative financial instruments &bt contracts are included in the currency aralysi
presented above and the following table presentiseiuanalysis of currency risk on derivative fioih
instruments and spot contracts as at 31 DecemBér 20

Accounts payable on spot and
derivative contracts

Accounts receivable on spot and
derivative contracts

NET SPOT AND DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
POSITION

KZT uUsb EUR RUR Other 31 December
CCYy 2006
Total
(KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)  (KZT million)
(66,282) (102,482) (3,482) (1,263) - (173,509)
41,725 61,288 61,333 3,046 9,920 177,312
(24,557) (41,194) 57,851 1,783 9,920
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Currency risk sensitivity analysis

The Group estimates the possible effect of a 1086tdhtion in foreign currency rates on the
consolidated income statement and consolidatedydogsed on the sensitivity analysis of the intdyna
prepared open currency position report, which ietuderivative financial instruments.

The analysis is based on the calculation of theashpf possible fluctuations in US dollar, Euro and
Russian Rouble currency rates on the consolidatmhie statements and consolidated equity. This is
due to the fact that as at 31 December 2007 these tie main currencies in which the Group had
open positions. A 10% fluctuation is determinedidseasonably possible change in the risk variable”
by the management of the Group. All other parametesre assumed to be constant. Negative and
positive amounts in the table reflect the potergrabable effect on the consolidated income statéme
and consolidated equity of such fluctuations.

A change of 10% represents the level of probabietdlations in foreign exchange rates that are used
within the Group for reporting purposes to key ngaraent. The sensitivity analysis includes open
foreign currency positions as at the reporting slafier which a 10% movement in foreign currency
exchange rates as compared to the existing yeataggslare used.

31 December 2007 31 December 2007
(KZT million) (KZT million)
KZT/USD KZT/EURO KZT/RUB KZT/USD KZT/EURO KZT/RUB
10% -10% 10% -10% 10% -10% 10% -10% 10% -10% 10% -10%
Impact on profit or
loss 4,190 (4,190) 160  (160) 2,606  (2,606) (994) 994 26§2 226 1,096 (1,096)

Impact on equity
Limitations of sensitivity analysis

The above tables demonstrate the effect of a changekey risk factor while all other things held
constant. In reality, there is a correlation betw#e assumptions and other factors. It should la¢so
noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, larger impacts should not be extrapolated fromehes
results.

The sensitivity analyses do not take into consiitamathat the Group’s assets and liabilities are
actively managed. Additionally, the financial pasit of the Group may vary depending on any actual
market movements, since the Group’s financial ms&nagement strategy aims to manage the
exposure to market fluctuations. In instances whlbege are significant or unexpected changes in
market conditions, management actions could incladiing investments, changing investment
portfolio allocation and taking other protectivdian. Consequently, the actual impacts of a chamge
the risk factors may be different from those shabove.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analysedude the use of hypothetical market movements
to demonstrate potential risk that only represéret Group’s view of possible near-term market

changes that cannot be predicted with a fair degfe@ertainty certainty; and the assumption thht al

interest rates move in an identical fashion.

Price risks
The Group is exposed to price risks arising fromitygnvestments. Equity investments are held for

strategic rather than trading purposes. Equity stments do not form a significant part of the
Group’s investment portfolio.
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40. RESTATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

As discussed in note 3, subsequent to the issug8drebruary 2008 of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 200G ip noted an error in the calculation of the
change in net interest accruals in the cash flaestent. As such, the Group is restating the filgnc
statements to correct this error for the year erddeBecember 2007 dated 25 March 2008.

The table below shows the effects of the restatéfoeithe year ended 31 December 2007

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2007 December 2007

Previously Restated
reported
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Change in interest accruals, net (58,305) (7,190)
Cash flow from operating activities before chanigesperating assets
and liabilities 74,218 125,333

(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Loans to customers (701,158) (701,115)
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Loans and advances from banks (167,423) (171,383)
Customer accounts 182,218 164,344
Other borrowed funds 80,486 79,756
Cash outflow from operating activities before taoat (251,194) (222,600)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (253 153 (224,859)
Proceeds from debt securities issued 349,993 321,632
Proceeds from subordinated debt 34,152 33,919
Net cash inflow from financing activities 355,044 326,450
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The table below shows the effects of the restatéfoenhe year ended 31 December 2006:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2006 December 2006

Previously Restated
reported
(KZT million) (KZT million)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Change in interest accruals, net 25,966 (10,215)
Net change in fair value of financial assets aadilities at fair value
through profit or loss 10,015 1,024
Cash flow from operating activities before chanigesperating assets
and liabilities 114,988 69,816
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo (183,617) (174,314)
Loans and advances to banks (84,218) (82,872)
Loans to customers (928,684) (892,293)
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Loans and advances from banks 401,197 399,210
Cash outflow from operating activities before taoat (404,981) (405,046)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (408,y81 (408,846)
Purchase of investments available for sale (6,910) (6,845)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (9,638) (9,573)

80



